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STATUTORY AUDITORS' REPORT
ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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This is a free translation into English of the Statutory Auditors’ report issued in French and is
provided solely for the convenience of English speaking users. The Statutory Auditors’ report
includes information specifically required by French law in such reports, whether modified or not.
This information presented below is the opinion on the consolidated financial statements and includes
an explanatory paragraph discussing the Auditors’ assessments of certain significant accounting and
auditing matters. These assessments were considered for the purpose of issuing an audit opinion on
the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole and not to provide separate assurance on
individual account captions or on information taken outside of the consolidated financial statements.

This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and
professional auditing standards applicable in France.

Compagnie de Saint-Gobain S.A.
Les Miroirs

18, avenue d'Alsace

92400 Courbevoie

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your Annual General Meeting,
we hereby report to you, for the year ended December 31, 2012, on:

o the audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Compagnie
de Saint-Gobain;

 the justification of our assessments;
 the specific verification required by law.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of
Directors. Our role is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit.
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I - Opinion on the consolidated financial statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France;
those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures, using sampling techniques or
other methods of selection, to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
assets and liabilities and of the financial position of the Group at December 31, 2012
and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Il - Justification of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L.823-9 of the French Commercial Code
(Code de Commerce) relating to the justification of our assessments, we bring to your
attention the following matters:

o Measurement of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Group regularly carries out impairment tests on its property, plant and
equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets, and also assesses whether there is
any indication of impairment of property, plant and equipment and amortizable
intangible assets, based on the methods described in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements (Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and goodwill). We examined the methods applied in implementing these tests and
the estimates and assumptions used, and we verified that the information disclosed in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements is appropriate.
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o Employee benefits

The methods applied for assessing employee benefits are set out in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements (Employee benefits — defined benefit plans). These
benefit obligations were reviewed by independent actuaries. Our work consisted of
assessing the data and assumptions used, examining, on a test basis, the calculations
performed and verifying that the information disclosed in Notes 1 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements is appropriate.

e Provisions

As specified in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements (Other current and
non-current liabilities and provisions), the Group books provisions to cover risks.
The nature of the provisions recorded under “Other current and non-current
liabilities and provisions” are described in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements. Based on the information available at the time of our audit, we ensured
that the methods and data used to determine provisions, particularly relating to the
European Commission’s decision concerning the automotive glass industry, as well
as the disclosures regarding said provisions provided in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, are appropriate.

These assessments were made as part of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, and therefore contributed to the opinion we formed
which is expressed in the first part of this report.

111 - Specific verification

As required by law, we have also verified in accordance with professional standards
applicable in France the information presented in the Group’s management report.

We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its consistency with the
consolidated financial statements.

Neuilly-sur-Seine and Paris La Défense, February 20, 2013
The Statutory Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit KPMG Audit
Department of KPMG S.A.

Pierre Coll  Jean-Christophe Georghiou Jean-Paul Vellutini  Philippe Grandclerc
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(in EUR millions)

ASSETS
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in associates
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets

Non-current assets

Inventories

Trade accounts receivable
Current tax receivable
Other receivables

Assets held for sale

Cash and cash equivalents

Current assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital stoc
Additional paid-in capital and legal reserve
Retained earnings and net income for the year
Cumulative translation adjustments
Fair value reserves
Treasury stock

Shareholders' equity

Minority interests

Total equity

Long-term debt

Provisions for pensions and other employee benefits
Deferred tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities and provisions

Non-current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of other liabilities
Trade accounts payable

Current tax liabilities

Other payables and accrued expenses
Liabilities held for sale

Short-term debt and bank overdrafts

Current liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31, 2011
Notes

(4) 10,936 11,041
(5) 3,196 3,148
(6) 13,696 14,225
@ 206 167
(16) 1,236 949
8) 359 347
29,629 29,877

C)) 6,133 6,477
(10) 5,017 5,341
(16) 204 182
(10) 1,425 1,408
3) 936 0
(20) 4,179 2,949
17,894 16,357
47,523 46,234

(1) 2,125 2,142
5,699 5,920
10,334 10,654

(523) (476)

(15) (22)
(1) (181) (403)
17,439 17,815

412 403

17,851 18,218

(20) 9,588 8,326
(15) 3,465 3,458
(16) 792 893
a7 21 2,143
16,016 14,820

(20) 1,732 1,656
a7 457 733
(18) 6,143 6,018
(16) 70 165
(18) 3,408 3,562
3) 497 0
(20) 1,349 1,062
13,656 13,196

47,523 46,234

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdimsolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

. - Notes 2012 2011
(in EUR millions)

Net sales (33) 43,198 42,116
Cost of sales (23) (33,046) (31,763)
Selling, general and administrative expenses imegitesearch (23) (7,271) (6,912)
Operating income 2,881 3,441
Other business income (23) 116 69
Other business expense (23) (1,013) (864)
Business income 1,984 2,646
Borrowing costs, gross (627) (559)
Income from cash and cash equivalents 40 43
Borrowing costs, net (587) (516)
Other financial income and expense (24) (237) (122)
Net financial expense (724) (638)
Share in net income of associates @) 12 8
Income taxes (16) (476) (656)
Net income 796 1,360

Attributable to equity holders of the parent 766 1,84
Minority interests 30 76

Earnings per share (in EUR))
Weighted average number of shares in issue 526899,9 526,274,931
Basic earnings per share (26) 1.46 2.44
Weighted average number of shares assuming fulliolil 528,692,847 530,333,380
Diluted earnings per share (26) 1.45 2.42

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdimsolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNIZED INCOME AND EXP ENSE

2012 2011
(in EUR millions)
Net income 796 1,360
Items that may be subsequently reclassified tatppofoss
Translation adjustments (65) (108)
Changes in fair value 7 21
Tax on items that may be subsequently reclassifiguiofit or loss (24) (6)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit os
Changes in actuarial gains and losses (922) (704)
Tax on items that will not be reclassified to prafi loss 293 240
Income and expense recognized directly in equity (711) (557)
Total recognized income and expense for the year 85 803
Attributable to equity holders of the parent 74 742
Minority interests 11 61

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(in EUR millions) Notes 2012 2011
Net income attributable to equity holders of the peent 766 1,284
Minority interests in net income *) 30 76
Share in net income of associates, net of divideacsived ) (6) 1)
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of assets (23) 1,988 1,892
Gains and losses on disposals of assets (23) (60) 1)
Unrealized gains and losses arising from changésrivalue and share-based payments (23) 48
Changes in inventories ©) 252 (551)
Changes in trade accounts receivable and payatilepther accounts receivable and payable (10)(18) 429 18
Changes in tax receivable and payable (16) (118) (6)
Changes in deferred taxes and provisions for didleitities and charges (15)(16)(17) (696) (374)
Net cash from operating activities 2,562 2,385
Purchases of property, plant and equipment [2Q1L,Z78), 2011: (1,936)] and intangible assets 6 (1,883) (2,028)
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to supplidiseaf assets (18) (67) 18
Acquisitions of shares in consolidated compani€d 2 (338), 2011: (688)], net of cash acquired  (2) (323; (666)
Acquisitions of other investments 8) (15) (8)
Increase in investment-related liabilities 17) 46 0
Decrease in investment-related liabilities @7) (8) (17)
Investments (2,250) (2,701)
Disposals of property, plant and equipment anchigitde assets (5)(6) 83 90
Disposals of shares in consolidated companiesyfresh divested ) 81 8
Disposals of other investments (8) 1 2
Divestments 165 100
Increase in loans and deposits 8) (85) (38)
Decrease in loans and deposits 8) 58 53
Changes in loans and deposits (27) 15
Net cash from (used in) investing activities (2,112) (2,586)
Issues of capital stock *) 127 158
(Increase) decrease in treasury stock *) (162) (186)
Dividends paid *) (646) (603)
Transactions with shareholders of parent company (681) (631)
Minority interests’ share in capital increasesusidiaries 13 4
Acquisitions of minority interests without gain @éntrol (1) (6)
Disposals of minority interests without loss of ttoh 5 0
Changes in investment related liabilities followihg exercise of put options of minority (69) (20)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders of consatiédi subsidiaries and increase (decreas
dividends payab (55) (20)
Transactions with minority interests (107) (42)
Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts and otleet-grm debt 296 64
Increase in long-term debt () 2,808 2,069
Decrease in long-term debt () (1,515) (1,055)
Changes in gross debt 1,589 1,078
Net cash from (used in) financing activities 801 405
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,251 204
Net effect of exchange rate changes on cash ahdecpsvalents (16) (20)
Net effect from changes in fair value on cash ash@quivalents (4) 3
Cash and cash equivalents classified as assetfonelale 3) (1) 0
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,949 2,762
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,179 2,949

(*) Refer to the consolidated statement of chamgesjuity.
(**) Including bond premiums, prepaid interest asslie costs.

Income tax paid amounted to €730 million in 201212 €668 million). Interest paid net of interesteived amounted to €571 million (2011: €484
million).

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdimsolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Number of shares)

(in EUR millions)

Issued Outstandini Capital Additional Retainec  Cumulative Fair value Treasury Share-  Minority Total
(excluding stock paid-in  earning: translatior reserves stock holders' interests  equity
treasury stock capital ant  and ne  adjustments equity
legal income
reserve  for the
year
At January 1, 2011 530,836,441 525,722,544 2,123 5,781 0,614 (383) (43) (224) 17,868 364 18,232
Income and expenses recognized directly
in equity 0 0 (470) (93) 21 0 (542) (15) (557)
Net income for the year 1,284 1,284 76 1,360
Total recognized income and expense
for the year 0 0 814 (93) 21 0 742 61 803
Issues of capital stock
Group Savings Plan 4,497,772 4,497,772 18 132 150 150
Stock option plans 229,510 229,510 1 7 8 8
Other 0 4 4
Dividends paid (EUR 1.15 per share) (603) (603) (21) (624)
Treasury stock purchased (10,180,347) (418) (418) (418)
Treasury stock sold 5,936,217 @) 239 232 232
Forward purchases of treasury stock (197) (197) (197)
Share-based payments 39 39 39
Changes in Group structure (6) (6) (5) (11)
At December 31, 2011 535,563,723 526,205,696 2,142 (5,92 10,654 (476) (22) (403) 17,815 403 18,218
Income and expenses recognized directly
in equity 0 0 (652) (47) 7 0 (692) (19) (711)
Net income for the year 766 766 30 796
Total recognized income and expense
for the year 0 0 114 (47) 7 0 74 11 85
Issues of capital stock
Group Savings Plan 4,387,680 4,387,680 18 107 125 125
Stock option plans 714,239 714,239 3 (1) 2 2
Other 0 13 13
Dividends paid (EUR 1.24 per share) (646) (646) (54) (700)
Treasury stock purchased (8,727,221) (280) (280) (280)
Treasury stock sold 3,854,183 (19) 137 118 118
Treasury stock canceled (9,540,000) (38) (327) 365 0 0
Forward purchases of treasury stock 197 197 197
Share-based payments 14 14 14
Changes in Group structure 20 20 39 59
At December 31, 2012 531,125,642 526,434,577 2,125 %,69 10,334 (523) (15) (181) 17,439 412 17,851

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdimsolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of Compagdei&aint-Gobain and its subsidiaries (“the GrouEye
been prepared in accordance with the InternatiBimaincial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted feringhe
European Union at December 31, 2012, correspontingpe IFRS issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB).

The accounting policies applied are consistent Witise used to prepare the financial statementthéoyear
ended December 31, 2011, except for the applicatidhe new standards and interpretations desciiesaly.
The consolidated financial statements have beqraped using the historical cost convention, exéaptertain
assets and liabilities that have been measured tisnfair value model as explained in these notes.

The standards, interpretations and amendmentshicsbed standards applicable for the first tim@12 (see
the table below) do not have a material impacthenGroup’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early adopted any new standistéspretations or amendments to published stasdévat
are applicable for accounting periods beginningoafter January 1, 2013 (see the table below).€Btienated
impact of applying the amendment to IAS 19 — Emp®\Benefits on the 2013 consolidated financial
statements would be as follows:

« Financial expenses would be approximately €150anilhigher, as a result of calculating the retunn o
plan assets using the discount rate applied tprihiected benefit obligation instead of the expectte
of return.

e Consolidated equity would be €26 million lower, doethe immediate recognition of cumulative past
service cost at January 1, 2013.

These consolidated financial statements were addptehe Board of Directors on February 20, 2013 il
be submitted to the Shareholders' Meeting for agrdhey are presented in millions of euros.

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of consolidated financial statesi@mtcompliance with IFRS requires management t&ema
estimates and assumptions that affect the repamedunts of assets and liabilities and the disciofr
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effithancial statements, as well as the reporteduats@mf income
and expenses during the period. These estimateassutinptions are based on past experience andrions/a
other factors in the prevailing deteriorated ecoitoend financial environment which makes it difficto
predict future business performance. Actual amouomdy differ from those obtained through the use¢heke
estimates and assumptions.

The main estimates and assumptions described @& thetes concern the measurement of employee benefi
obligations (Note 15), provisions for other liabds and charges (Note 17), asset impairment (dlite 1),
deferred taxes (Note 16), share-based paymentegN@, 13 and 14) and financial instruments (Ndaje 2
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SUMMARY OF NEW STANDARDS , INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED STANDA RDS

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existg standards applicable in 2012:

Amendments to IFRS

| Disclosure< Transfers of financial ass

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existg standards early adopted in 2012;

Amendment to IAS 1

Presentation of items of ottengrehensive income

Amendments to IAS 12

Deferred taxes: recovery afeulying assets and incorporation into the standa®IC-21
income taxes — recovery of revalued non-depreciadets

Amendmers to IAS 1¢

Employee benefi

Amendment to 1AS 27

Separate financial statements

Amendment to IAS 28

Investments in associates aint yentures

Amendment to 1AS 32

Offsetting financial assets financial liabilities

Amendments to IFRS 1

Severe hyperinflation and rerhof fixed dates for first-time adopters

Amendments to IFRS 7

Disclosure of offsetting ficiahassets and financial liabilities

IFRS 10

Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 11 Joint arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement

IFRIC 20 Stripping costs in the production phasa sfirface mine

Standards adopted by the European Union may beikted®n the European Commission website, at
http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/accountingfidek_en.htm

SCOPE AND METHODS OF CONSOLIDATION

Scope

The Group’s consolidated financial statements ithelthe accounts of Compagnie de Saint-Gobain aradl of
companies controlled by the Group, as well as tlwbgeintly controlled companies and companies avbich
the Group exercises significant influence.

Significant changes in the Group's scope of codatibn during 2012 are presented in Note 2 andtafithe
principal consolidated companies at December 312 20 provided in Note 34.

Consolidation methods

Companies over which the Group exercises exclusigstrol, either directly or indirectly, are fully

consolidated.

Interests in jointly controlled entities are projamately consolidated. The Group has elected oatpiply the
alternative treatment permitted by IAS 31, undeicWwhointly controlled companies may be accountadify
the equity method, and has maintained the propwatéoconsolidation method.

Companies over which the Group directly or indikeeixercises significant influence are accountedbfpthe

equity method.

The Group's share of the profit of companies actmlifor by the equity method is recognized in theome
statement under "Share in net income of associates"
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Business combinations

The Group has applied IFRS 3R and IAS 27A on agactive basis starting from January 1, 2010. Assalt,
business combinations completed prior to that dederecognized in accordance with the previousimessof
IFRS 3 and IAS 27.

= Goodwill

When an entity is acquired by the Group, the idialie assets and assumed liabilities of the erdiy
recognized at their fair value. Any adjustmentsptovisional values as a result of completing thigiaih
accounting are recognized within 12 months andsggctively at the acquisition date.

The final acquisition price (referred to as “comsation transferred” in IFRS 3R), including theimastted fair
value of any earn-out payments or other deferretsideration (referred to as “contingent considers is
determined in the 12 months following the acquisitiUnder IFRS 3R, any adjustments to the acqoisjirice
beyond this 12-month period are recorded in therme statement. Since January 1, 2010, all costethir
attributable to the business combination, i.e.<t®tt the acquirer incurs to effect a businessbagation such
as professional fees paid to investment banks;netys, auditors, independent valuers and otheruttamss, are
no longer capitalized as part of the cost of th&if®ss combination, but are recognized as expassesurred.

In addition, since January 1, 2010, goodwill isogruzed only at the date that control is achievedjgint
control is achieved in the case of proportionategsolidated companies or significant influencebtained in
the case of entities accounted for by the equitgho®. Any subsequent increase in ownership intases
recorded as a change in equity attributable teethaty holders of the parent without adjusting geibid

Goodwill is recorded in the consolidated balanceesias the difference between the acquisition-@étevalue
of (i) the consideration transferred plus the an@iirany minority interests and (ii) the identiflamet assets of
the acquiree. Minority interests are measured e#ketheir proportionate interest in the net idatile assets
(partial goodwill method) or at their fair value tiie acquisition date (full goodwill method). Asetiroup
generally applies the partial goodwill method, geiidcalculated by the full goodwill method is notaterial.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of gaiaition over the fair value of the Group’s shaf¢he assets
and liabilities of the acquired entity. If the cadtthe acquisition is less than the fair valueghaf net assets and
liabilities acquired, the difference is recognizicectly in the income statement.

= Step acquisitions and partial disposals

When the Group acquires control of an entity inalhit already held an equity interest, the trarieacis
treated as a step acquisition (an acquisitionagest), as follows: (i) as a disposal of the preslipheld interest,
with recognition of any gain or loss in the condated financial statements, and (ii) as an acduisibf the
entire interest, with recognition of the correspagdyoodwill (on both the old and new acquisitions)

When the Group disposes of part of an equity istedeading to the loss of control (with a minoritgerest
retained), the transaction is also treated as &datisposal and an acquisition, as follows: (i) assposal of the
entire interest, with recognition of any gain osdoin the consolidated financial statements, anda¢ an
acquisition of the retained non-controlling (mingyiinterest, measured at fair value.
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= Potential voting rights and share purchase comnritsie

Potential voting rights conferred by call options minority interests (non-controlling interestsg daaken into
account in determining whether the Group exclugiwgntrols an entity only when the options are eutly
exercisable.

When calculating its percentage interest in col@dotompanies, the Group considers the impact afscput
and call options on minority interests in the comipa concerned. This approach gives rise to thegrétion in

the financial statements of an investment-relaiuility (included within “Other liabilities”) comsponding to
the present value of the estimated exercise pifitheoput option, with a corresponding reductiomimority

interests and equity attributable to equity holddrthe parent. Any subsequent changes in thevédire of the
liability are recognized by adjusting equity.

= Minority interests

Up to December 31, 2009, transactions with minaritgrests were treated in the same way as traosaatith

parties external to the Group. As from January 1,02 changes in minority interests (referred to‘remn-

controlling interests” in IFRS 3R) are accountedds equity transactions between two categorieswofers of
a single economic entity in accordance with IAS 224 a result, they are recorded in the statemiedhanges
in equity and have no impact on the income statéroemalance sheet, except for changes in castcasi
equivalents.

Non-current assets and liabilities held for sale Biscontinued operations

Assets and liabilities that are immediately avdédbr sale and for which a sale is highly probabie classified
as non-current assets and liabilities held for.Salken several assets are held for sale in a strghsaction,
they are accounted for as a disposal group, whisth iacludes any liabilities directly associatedhwihose
assets.

The assets or disposal groups held for sale arsuredat the lower of carrying amount and fair gdkss costs
to sell. Depreciation ceases when non-current assatisposal groups are classified as held fa. 8&hen the
assets held for sale are consolidated companidsfrelé tax is recognized on the difference betwten
consolidated carrying amount of the shares and tieibasis, in accordance with 1AS 12.

Non-current assets and liabilities held for sale presented separately on the face of the consadidmlance
sheet, and income and expenses continue to benigedgn the consolidated income statement on exbin
line basis. Income and expenses arising on disuaedi operations are recorded as a single amouitediace
of the consolidated income statement.

At each balance sheet date, the value of the amsétkabilities is reviewed to determine whethey arovision
adjustments should be recorded due to a changeimnfair value less costs to sell.

Intragroup transactions

All intragroup balances and transactions are ekiteid in consolidation.
Translation of the financial statements of foreigrcompanies

The consolidated financial statements are presentedros, which is Compagnie de Saint-Gobain’sfiomal
and presentation currency.

10



Group Saint-Gobain Consolidated Financial Statesent

Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries outside ¢lieo zone are translated into euros at the closkehange rate
and income and expense items are translated Ustngvierage exchange rate for the period, excepieicase
of significant exchange rate volatility.

The Group’s share of any translation gains or dseincluded in equity under “Cumulative trangati
adjustments” until the foreign operations to whikhy relate are sold or liquidated, at which titmeytare taken
to the income statement if the transaction resnlis loss of control or recognized directly in gtatement of
changes in equity if the change in ownership irstedl®es not result in a loss of control.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated imtoGompany’s functional currency using the exchamages
prevailing at the transaction date. Assets andlilizs denominated in foreign currencies are tlatesl at the
closing rate and any exchange differences are dedomn the income statement. As an exception te thi
principle, exchange differences relating to loamd borrowings between Group companies are recoragdf
tax, in equity under “Cumulative translation adiments”, as in substance they are an integral gatieonet
investment in a foreign subsidiary.

BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Goodwill

See the section above on “Business combinations”.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets primarily include patebtands, software and development costs. They aasuned at
historical cost less accumulated amortization amgbirment.

Acquired retail brands and certain manufacturingnds are treated as intangible assets with indefuseful
lives as they have a strong national and/or inteynal reputation. These brands are not amortizecie tested
for impairment on an annual basis. Other brandsuen@rtized over their useful lives, not to exce@d/dars.
Costs incurred to develop software in-house — pilyngonfiguration, programming and testing costsre
recognized as intangible assets. Patents and medh@mputer software are amortized over theimeséd
useful lives, not exceeding 20 years for patentistaree to five years for software.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Develbposa meeting the recognition criteria under B&are
included in intangible assets and amortized oveir tsstimated useful lives (not to exceed five geétom the
date when the products to which they relate ast firarketed.

Concerning greenhouse gas emissions allowancesowsipn is recorded in the consolidated financial
statements to cover any difference between the g amissions and the allowances granted.

Property, plant and equipment

Land, buildings and equipment are carried at hishbrost less accumulated depreciation and impaitm

11
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Cost may also include incidental expenses dirattiybutable to the acquisition, such as transfienn equity
of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedufggroperty, plant and equipment purchases.

Expenses incurred in exploring and evaluating naihexsources are included in property, plant andpegent
when it is probable that associated future econdraitefits will flow to the Group. They include migirthe
costs of topographical or geological studies, iddlicosts, sampling costs and all costs incurreabsessing the
technical feasibility and commercial viability ofteacting the mineral resource.

Material borrowing costs incurred for the constiorctand acquisition of property, plant and equiptnere
included in the cost of the related asset.

Except for the head office building, which is theoGp’s only material non-industrial asset, propepignt and
equipment are considered as having no residuakyalsi most items are intended to be used untiétigeof
their useful lives and are not generally expeotelet sold.

Property, plant and equipment other than land apgatiated using the components approach on glstiaie
basis over the following estimated useful livesjolitare regularly reviewed:

* Major factories and offices 30-40 years
e Other buildings 15-25 years
* Production machinery and equipment 5-16 years
* Vehicles 3-5 years

« Furniture, fixtures, office and computer equipment 4-16 years

Gypsum quarries are depreciated over their estinageful lives, based on the quantity of gypsummaex¢d
during the year compared with the extraction cdpaci

Provisions for site restoration are recognized @®ponents of assets whenever the Group has a ¢egal
constructive obligation to restore a site in aceo® with contractually determined conditions othie event of
a sudden or gradual deterioration in site condstiothese provisions are reviewed periodically aray re
discounted over the expected useful lives of tlsetasconcerned. The component is depreciated bgesame
useful life as that used for mines and quarries.

Government grants for purchases of property, pdack equipment are recorded under “Other payabled” a
taken to the income statement over the estimateilus/es of the relevant assets.

Finance leases and operating leases

Assets held under leases that transfer to the Gsoibgtantially all of the risks and rewards of owshé
(finance leases) are recognized as property, plashtequipment. They are recognized at the commesTaeoh
the lease term at the lower of the fair value ef ldased property and the present value of thenmimi lease
payments.

Property, plant and equipment acquired under fiedeases are depreciated on a straight-line basistbe
shorter of the estimated useful life of the assdetermined using the same criteria as for asseted by the
Group — or the lease term. The corresponding ltghd shown in the balance sheet net of relatéer@st.

Rental payments under operating leases are expassedurred.

12



Group Saint-Gobain Consolidated Financial Statesent

Non-current financial assets

Non-current financial assets include availabledale and other securities, as well as other nomeguassets,
which primarily comprise long-term loans and defosi

Investments classified as “available-for-sale” aegried at fair value. Unrealized gains and losseshese
investments are recognized in equity, unless thesiments have suffered an other-than-temporargaterial

decline in value, in which case an impairment iesgcorded in the income statement.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill

Property, plant and equipment, goodwill and othéarigible assets are tested for impairment on @aegasis.
These tests consist of comparing the asset’s ogrig/imount to its recoverable amount. Recoverablauatris

the higher of the asset’s fair value less costsetband its value in use, calculated by referdoctne present
value of the future cash flows expected to be @erivom the asset.

For property, plant and equipment and amortizatiignigible assets, an impairment test is performeghever
revenues from the asset decline or the asset desayperating losses due to either internal oreatdactors,
and no material improvement is forecast in the ahbudget or the business plan.

For goodwill and other intangible assets (includbrgnds with indefinite useful lives), an impairrhéest is
performed at least annually based on the 5-yeaméss plan. Goodwill is reviewed systematically and
exhaustively at the level of each cash-generatmg(CGU). The Group’s reporting segments are usitess
sectors, which may each include several CGUs. A @G&Jreporting sub-segment, generally defined esra
business of the segment in a given geographical. draypically reflects the manner in which theoGp
organizes its business and analyzes its resultinfernal reporting purposes. A total of 36 CGUsl leeen
identified at December 31, 2012.

Goodwill is allocated mainly to the Gypsum CGU @& million at December 31, 2012), the Industrial
Mortars CGU (€1,991 million at December 31, 2012}l éhe Building Distribution CGUs (€3,435 million a
December 31, 2012) primarily in the United KingdoRrance and Scandinavia. Details of goodwill and
unamortizable brands by sector are provided irséggnent information tables in Note 33.

The method used for these impairment tests is stamiwith that employed by the Group for the vaturaof
companies acquired in business combinations origitigns of equity interests. The carrying amouhthe
CGUs is compared to their value in use, correspundd the present value of future cash flows exolyd
interest but including tax. Cash flows for theHiftear of the business plan are rolled forward diverfollowing
two years. For impairment tests of goodwill, norvetash flows (corresponding to cash flows atntigé-point

in the business cycle) are then projected to peityeising a low annual growth rate (generally ¥Xcept for
emerging markets or businesses with a high orggrawth potential where a 1.5% rate may be usedg Th
discount rate applied to these cash flows corredptmthe Group’s average cost of capital (7.25%oitth 2012
and 2011) plus a country risk premium where appatprdepending on the geographic area concernesl. Th
discount rates applied in 2012 and 2011 for thenrogerating regions were 7.25% for the euro zomeNuorth
America, 8.25% for Eastern Europe and China ang8.for South America.

The recoverable amount calculated using a posthtoount rate gives the same result as a pre-texapplied
to pre-tax cash flows.
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Different assumptions measuring the method’s geitgitare systematically tested using the following
parameters:

« 0.5-point increase or decrease in the annual ageedg of growth in cash flows projected to peripgtu
¢ 0.5-point increase or decrease in the discountagiéed to cash flows.

When the annual impairment test reveals that tteverable amount of an asset is less than itsicgragnount, an
impairment loss is recorded.

Tests performed in 2012 led to the recognition €48 million impairment loss on Building Distribati Sector
goodwill, along with impairment losses on variotesris of property, plant and equipment held by thercSectors,
particularly the solar businesses. The breakdovassét impairments by Sector and by Activity fot2@nd 2011
is provided in the segment information tables ineN\gB.

A 0.5-point decrease in projected average annoalthrin cash flows to perpetuity for all the CGUsuM lead to
approximately €30 million in additional write-dowogintangible assets, while a 0.5-point increasthe discount
rate applied to all the CGUs would result in addisil write-downs of less than €100 million.

Impairment losses on goodwill can never be revettseaigh income. For property, plant and equipnagt other
intangible assets, an impairment loss recognizedgrior period may be reversed if there is ancetibn that the
impairment no longer exists and that the recoveraiylount of the asset concerned exceeds its gaagiount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andremizable value. The cost of inventories incluttes costs of
purchase, costs of conversion, and other costsrettin bringing the inventories to their presestation and
condition. It is generally determined using thegiéed-average cost method, and in some casesritérFirst-

Out (FIFO) method. Cost of inventories may alsdude the transfer from equity of any gains/lossesjaalifying

cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchaseswfmaterials. Net realizable value is the sellingepin the
ordinary course of business, less estimated amstapletion and costs to sell. No account is tékéhe inventory
valuation process of the impact of below-normabc#y utilization rates.

Operating receivables and payables

Operating receivables and payables are statednainabvalue as they generally have maturities e§ lthan
three months. Provisions for impairment are esthbli to cover the risk of total or partial non-rexy.

The Group considers that its exposure to concémisabf credit risk is limited due to its diversifi business
line-up, broad customer base and global presena&t-dRe trade receivables are regularly monitoredi a
analyzed, and provisions are set aside when agptepr

Trade and other accounts receivable are mainlywdthén one year, with the result that their cargiamount
approximates fair value.

For trade receivables transferred under secuiitizgbrograms, the contracts concerned are analgmedif

substantially all the risks associated with theenegbles are not transferred to the financing tastins, they
remain on the balance sheet and a correspondirititiias recognized in short-term debt.
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Net debt
= Long-term debt

Long-term debt includes bonds, Medium Term Notespetual bonds, participating securities and diept
types of long-term financial liabilities includirigase liabilities and the fair value of derivativepglifying as
interest rate hedges.

Under IAS 32, the distinction between financiablidgies and equity is based on the substance efctntracts
concerned rather than their legal form. As a regaltticipating securities are classified as dabthe balance
sheet date, long-term debt is measured at amortizetd Premiums and issuance costs are amortizeg te
effective interest method.

=  Short-term debt

Short-term debt includes the current portion of tbeg-term debt described above, short-term finamci
programs such as commercial paper lmtéts de trésorerie(French commercial paper), bank overdrafts and
other short-term bank borrowings, as well as the Jalue of credit derivatives not qualifying foretige
accounting. At the balance sheet date, short-tegbt & measured at amortized cost, with the exoepif
derivatives that are held as hedges of debt. Pramiand issuance costs are amortized using thetieéfec
interest method.

= Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents mainly consist of cashamnl, bank accounts and marketable securitiesatieat
short-term (i.e. generally with maturities of lelsan three months), highly liquid investments rgadi
convertible into known amounts of cash and subjean insignificant risk of changes in value. Madkde
securities are measured at fair value through tpoofioss.

Further details about long- and short-term debpaogided in Note 20.

Foreign exchange, interest rate and commodity deratives (swaps, options, futures)

The Group uses interest rate, foreign exchangecaminodity derivatives to hedge its exposure to gesrin
interest rates, exchange rates and commodity gheg¢snay arise in the normal course of business.

In accordance with IAS 32 and IAS 39, all of thesstruments are recognized in the balance sheet and
measured at fair value, irrespective of whethenairthey are part of a hedging relationship thatlifjas for
hedge accounting under IAS 39.

Changes in fair value of both derivatives thatdesignated and qualify as fair value hedges andatetes that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken ®itltome statement (in business income for foreigrhange
and commodity derivatives qualifying for hedge aouing, and in net financial expense for all other
derivatives). However, in the case of derivativiest tqualify as cash flow hedges, the effectiveiporof the
gain or loss arising from changes in fair valueeisognized directly in equity, and only the ineffee portion is
recognized in the income statement.

= Fair value hedges

Most interest rate derivatives used by the Groupatap fixed rates for variable rates are designatedqualify
as fair value hedges. These derivatives hedge-fiaxexddebts exposed to a fair value risk.
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In accordance with hedge accounting principlest dethuded in a designated fair value hedging refeship is
remeasured at fair value. As the effective portbhe gain or loss on the fair value hedge offsie¢sloss or
gain on the underlying hedged item, the incomeestant is only impacted by the ineffective portidnttee
hedge.

= Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedge accounting is applied by the Grognly for derivatives used to fix the cost of fugu
investments in financial assets or property, pardt equipment, future purchases of gas and fuéfixéd-for-

variable price swaps) and future purchases ofdareurrencies (forward contracts). The transactimdged by
these instruments are qualified as highly probable application of cash flow hedge accountingvetldhe
Group to defer the impact on the income statemetiieeffective portion of changes in the fair \&ahf these
instruments by recording them in a special hedgisgrve in equity. The reserve is reclassified theoincome
statement when the hedged transaction occurs andettiged item affects income. In the same way rafifo
value hedges, cash flow hedging limits the Grogpjsosure to changes in the fair value of thesesmicaps to
the ineffective portion of the hedge.

= Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accougtin

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that do qumlify for hedge accounting are recognized i ittcome
statement. The instruments concerned mainly inclerdas-currency swaps; gas, currency and inteedst r
options; currency swaps; and futures and forwardraots.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financiabliities quoted in an active market correspondhéir quoted
price, classified as level 1 in the fair value bhiehy defined in IFRS 7. The fair value of finah@asets and
financial liabilities not quoted in an active marke established by a recognized valuation techmisuch as
reference to the fair value of another recent amila transaction, or discounted cash flow anaysased on
observable market data, classified as level 2erRS 7 fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of short-term financial assets aadilities is considered as being the same as ttitying
amount due to their short maturities.

Employee benefits — defined benefit plans

After retirement, the Group’s former employees alfigible for pension benefits in accordance witke th
applicable laws and regulations in the respectiwantries in which the Group operates. There are als
additional pension obligations in certain Group pamies, both in France and in other countries.

In France, employees receive length-of-service dsvayn retirement based on years of service and the
calculation methods prescribed in the applicabliective bargaining agreements.

The Group’s obligation for the payment of pensians length-of-service awards is determined at Hiarze
sheet date by independent actuaries, using a méthotbkes into account projected final salartag@rement
and economic conditions in each country. Thesegatibns may be financed by pension funds, withcaipion
recognized in the balance sheet for the unfundetibpo

The effect of any plan amendments (past servicg secognized on a straight-line basis overrdmaaining
vesting period, or immediately if the benefits aleeady vested.

Actuarial gains or losses reflect year-on-year gleanin the actuarial assumptions used to measerérbup’s
obligations and plan assets, experience adjustnigiffisrences between the actuarial assumptionsadnrad has
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actually occurred), and changes in legislation.yTdre recognized in equity as they occur.

In the United States, Spain and Germany, retiregpl@mpes receive benefits other than pensions, gnainl
concerning healthcare. The Group’s obligation urtdese plans is determined using an actuarial rdedhd is
covered by a provision recorded in the balancetshee

Provisions are also set aside on an actuarial basisther employee benefits, such as jubileestberolong-
service awards, deferred compensation, specifitaveebenefits, and termination benefits in varioaantries.
Any actuarial gains and losses relating to thesefits are recognized immediately.

The Group has elected to recognize the interess dosthese obligations and the expected returplam assets
as financial expense or income.

Employee benefits — defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans areenged as incurred.

Employee benefits — share-based payments
= Stock-option plans

The cost of stock option plans is calculated ughmg Black & Scholes option pricing model, basedtioa
following parameters:

« volatility assumptions that take into account tietdrical volatility of the share price over a iy 10-
year period, as well as implied volatility from ded share options. Periods of extreme share price
volatility are disregarded,;

e assumptions relating to the average holding peoifodptions, based on observed behavior of option
holders;

* expected dividends, as estimated on the basistdrhtal information dating back to 1988;

« arisk-free interest rate corresponding to thedygai long-term government bonds;

« the effect of any stock market performance condgjowhich is taken into account in the initial
measurement of the plan cost under IFRS 2.

The cost calculated using this method is recognirethe income statement over the vesting periodhef
options, ranging from three to four years.

For options exercised for new shares, the sum veddby the Company when the options are exercised i
recorded in “Capital stock” for the portion repnetieg the par value of the shares, with the balanoet of
directly attributable transaction costs — recordeder “Additional paid-in capital”.

= Group Savings Plan (“PEG”)
The method used by Saint-Gobain to calculate tlstsanf its Group Savings Plan takes into accouatfalot
that shares granted to employees under the plasuimect to a 5- or 10-year lock-up. The lock-ugtcs

measured and deducted from the 20% discount gréytdee Group on employee share awards. The céloula
parameters are defined as follows:
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* The exercise price, as set by the Board of Directoorresponds to the average of the opening share
prices quoted over the 20 trading days precedieglétte of grant, less a 20% discount.

e The grant date of the options is the date on wkhehplan is announced to employees. For the Saint-
Gobain Group, this is the date when the plan’s $eamd conditions are announced on the Group’s
intranet.

* The interest rate used to estimate the cost ofatieup feature of employee share awards is the rat
that would be charged by a bank to an individudihwin average risk profile for a general purposer5-
10-year consumer loan repayable at maturity.

Leveraged plan costs are calculated under IFRSI&isame way as for non-leveraged plans, buttaksointo
account the advantage accruing to employees whe dasess to share prices with a volatility pradifiapted to
institutional investors.

The cost of the plans is recognized in full atéhd of the subscription period.
= Performance share and performance unit grants

The Group set up a worldwide share grant plan i692@hereby each Group employee was awarded seven
shares, while since 2009, performance share plame been established for certain categories of @repk.
These plans are subject to eligibility criteriadxh®n the grantee’s period of service with the @rdthe plan
costs calculated under IFRS 2 take into accountetiggbility criteria, the performance criteria —high are
described in Note 14 — and the lock-up feature.yTéwe determined after deducting the present vafue
forfeited dividends on the performance shares aadecognized over the vesting period, which rarfgas

two to four years depending on the country.

Since 2012, performance unit plans have been sdbrupertain employees in France. These plans B a
subject to eligibility criteria based on the gra$eperiod of service with the Group and to cerf@@nformance
criteria. The costs calculated under IFRS 2 theecfake into account these factors, as well agatiethat the
units are cash-settled. IFRS 2 stipulates thatcéwh-settled share-based payment transactiongyrémeed
instruments are initially measured at fair valughat grant date, then remeasured at each perigdngtidthe
cost adjusted accordingly pro rata to the rightd trave vested at the period-end. The cost is néoed over
the vesting period of the rights.

Equity
= Additional paid-in capital and legal reserve

This item includes capital contributions in exce$she par value of capital stock as well as tlgaleeserve,
which corresponds to a cumulative portion of theimeome of Compagnie de Saint-Gobain.

= Retained earnings and net income for the year

Retained earnings and net income for the year gpored to the Group’s share in the undistributediegs of
all consolidated companies.

= Treasury stock

Treasury stock is measured at cost and recordeddasluction from equity. Gains and losses on dedpasf
treasury stock are recognized directly in equity have no impact on net income for the period.

Forward purchases of treasury stock are treatedeirsame way.When a fixed number of shares is paseth

forward at a fixed price, this amount is recorded'@ther liabilities” and as a deduction from eguitnder
“Retained earnings and net income for the year”.
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Other current and non-current liabilities and provi sions
= Provisions for other liabilities and charges

A provision is booked when (i) the Group has a @né$egal or constructive obligation towards adiperty as
a result of a past event, (ii) it is probable thatoutflow of resources will be required to settle obligation,
and (iii) the amount of the obligation can be eatied reliably.

If the timing or the amount of the obligation cahbe measured reliably, it is classified as a cwant liability
and reported as an off-balance sheet commitment.

Provisions for other material liabilities and chesgvhose timing can be estimated reliably are disisdl to
present value.

= |nvestment-related liabilities

Investment-related liabilities correspond to putiaps granted to minority shareholders of subsidgaand
liabilities relating to the acquisition of sharesGroup companies, including additional purchasesiceration.
They are reviewed on a periodic basis and any suilest changes in the fair value of minority shatédioputs
are recognized by adjusting equity.

INCOME STATEMENT ITEMS

Revenue recognition

Revenue generated by the sale of goods or seridaesognized net of rebates, discounts and sakes t(i)
when the risks and rewards of ownership have bemsferred to the customer, or (ii) when the senhas
been rendered, or (iii) by reference to the stdgmmpletion of the services to be provided.

Construction contracts are accounted for using#teentage of completion method, as explained héldiaen
the outcome of a construction contract can be estidhreliably, contract revenue and costs are rézed as
revenue and expenses, respectively, by referentbetstage of completion of the contract activitytlze
balance sheet date. When the outcome of a corismmumintract cannot be estimated reliably, contragenue
is recognized only to the extent of contract castairred that it is probable will be recovered. \Whe is
probable that total contract costs will exceed ltotantract revenue, the expected loss is recogn@&e@n
expense immediately.

Construction contract revenues are not materigglation to total consolidated net sales.

Operating income

Operating income is a measure of the performandbeofGroup’s business sectors and has been us#tk by
Group as its key external and internal managenmeintator for many years. Foreign exchange gainda@ssks
are included in operating income, as are chang#eeifair value of financial instruments that dd goalify for
hedge accounting when they relate to operatingsitem

Other business income and expense

Other business income and expense mainly includeements in provisions for claims and litigation and
environmental provisions, gains and losses on depaf assets, impairment losses, restructuriatsco
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incurred upon the disposal or discontinuation afrafions and the costs of workforce reduction nmressu

Business income

Business income includes all income and expendes tttan borrowing costs and other financial incame
expense, the Group’s share in net income of agssciand income taxes.

Net financial expense

Net financial expense includes borrowing and offreancing costs, income from cash and cash equitgle
interest cost for pension and other post-employrbenifit plans, net of the return on plan assetd, aher
financial income and expense such as exchange gathksses and bank charges.

Income taxes

Current income tax is the estimated amount of tgaple in respect of income for a given periodcuwated by
reference to the tax rates that have been enactsdbstantively enacted at the balance sheet phig,any
adjustments to current taxes recorded in previman€ial periods.

Deferred taxes are recorded using the balance $labdity method for temporary differences betwettre
carrying amount of assets and liabilities and tkeir basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilitiesnaeasured at
the tax rates expected to apply to the period wherasset is realized or the liability settled,doben the tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively ehattdie balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it issaered probable that there will be sufficientufet taxable
income against which the temporary difference carutilized. They are reviewed at each balance gsietet
and written down to the extent that it is no longesbable that there will be sufficient taxabledne against
which the temporary difference can be utilizeddé&iermining whether to recognize deferred tax ageettax
loss carryforwards, the Group applies a range ibéra that take into account the probable recoyesgiod
based on business plan projections and the strdtegye long-term recovery of tax losses applieceach
country.

No deferred tax liability is recognized in respetundistributed earnings of subsidiaries thatrereintended to
be distributed.

In accordance with former interpretation SIC 2Hederred tax liability is recognized for brands @icgd in a
business combination.

Deferred taxes are recognized as income or exgartbe income statement, except when they relateetos
that are recognized directly in equity, in whiclseahe deferred tax is also recognized in equity.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by divideigncome by the weighted average number of sharissue
during the period, excluding treasury stock.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adgusgrnings per share (see Note 26) and the avexagber of
shares in issue for the effects of all dilutivegmttal common shares, such as stock options ancedise bonds.
The calculation is performed using the treasurgkstoethod, which assumes that the proceeds fromxtreise of
dilutive instruments are assigned on a priorityd#sthe purchase of common shares in the market.
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Recurring net income

Recurring net income corresponds to income afieata minority interests but before capital gainksses, asset
impairment losses, material non-recurring provisiand the related tax and minority interests.

The method used for calculating recurring net inedgrexplained in Note 25.

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

EBITDA
EBITDA corresponds to operating income before dgatien and amortization.

The method used for calculating EBITDA is explaimedlote 25.

Return on capital employed

Return on capital employed (ROCE) corresponds moi@ized operating income adjusted for changelsdrstope
of consolidation, expressed as a percentage dfassats at the period-end. Total assets includproperty, plant
and equipment, working capital, net goodwill andeotintangible assets, but exclude deferred tagtassising
from non-amortizable brands and land.

Cash flow from operations

Cash flow from operations corresponds to net caslergted from operating activities before the irhpachanges
in working capital requirement, changes in currenies and movements in provisions for other litddi and
charges and deferred taxes. Cash flow from opesattoadjusted for the effect of material non-rengrprovision

charges.

The method used for calculating cash flow from afiens is explained in Note 25.

Cash flow from operations before tax on capital gais and losses and non-recurring provisions

This item corresponds to cash flow from operatitass the tax effect of asset disposals and of ecuring
provision charges and reversals.

The method used for calculating cash flow from apiens before tax on capital gains and losses andeturring
provisions is explained in Note 25.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

In compliance with IFRS 8, segment informationeets the Group’s internal presentation of operatesmylts
to senior management. The Group has chosen tonpresgment information by Sector and Activity, weiti
any further aggregation compared with the inteprasentation. There were no changes in the preégentat
segment information in 2012 compared with priorrgea
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NOTE 2 - CHANGES IN GROUP STRUCTURE

Changes in the number of consolidated companies

France Outside Total
France

Fully consolidated companies

At January 1, 2012 173 768 941
Newly consolidated companies 2 18 20
Merged companies ) (66) (73)
Deconsolidated companies 1) 1)
Change in consolidation method 1) 1) )

At December 31, 2012 166 719 885

Proportionately consolidated companies

At January 1, 2012 2 27 29
Newly consolidated companies 0
Deconsolidated companies Q) 1)
Change in consolidation method 1 3) @)

At December 31, 2012 3 23 26

Companies accounted for by the equity method

At January 1, 2012 6 71 77
Newly consolidated companies 3 3
Merged companies 0
Deconsolidated companies 2) 2)
Change in consolidation method 4 4

At December 31, 2012 4 78 82

TOTAL at January 1, 2012 181 866 1,047
TOTAL at December 31, 2012 173 820 993

Significant changes in Group structure

2012

On January 17, 2013, after consulting the WorksnCibuvhich expressed its support for the plan, S@iobain
accepted an offer received from Ardagh to acquieraMa North America. Consequently, Verallia North
America’s assets and liabilities were reclassitisdheld for sale in the consolidated balance siteBecember
31, 2012. Details of assets and liabilities heldstle are presented in Note 3.

On June 8, 2012, Saint-Gobain signed an agreeroerthé acquisition of the Celotex Group, one of th€s
leading manufacturers of high-performance insujgfoam. The transaction was completed in the sebaifdof
the year and Celotex was consolidated from Septeinl2®12.

On March 30, 2012, Saint-Gobain completed the atipm of Brossette from Wolseley, after the trarsm

was approved by France’s competition authoritiedlanch 23. Brossette is a distributor of plumbhegting-
sanitaryware products in France. It has been cmtadetl as from April 1, 2012.
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2011

On November 30, 2011, the Group's Abrasives Agtigitpanded its presence in South America by acgyiri
Abrasivos Argentinos S.A. and Dancan S.A. and tkeisidiaries. The two groups are specialized & th
production of coated abrasives and masking tapgesy iave been consolidated as from December 1, 2011

On August 11, 2011, the Group signed an agreemintBelgian group Bekaert for the acquisition oD of

its Specialty Films subsidiaries. This businessgrafing under the name Solar Gard, is specialinethé
development, manufacturing and distribution of eddilms used in the habitat market, the automatiaeket
and various industrial applications. The Solar Gsutisidiaries have been consolidated as from Nogemb
1, 2011.

On July 25, 2011, the Group signed an agreemetit WiK building materials distributor Wolseley foreth
acquisition of its British Build Center network. i§tbusiness has been consolidated as from Noveinl2611.

On May 31, 2011, Saint-Gobain announced that it $igded an agreement to acquire Sezal Glass Liisited
float glass business in India. This business has bensolidated as from June 30, 2011.

In first-half 2011, Saint-Gobain signed an agreenfienthe buy-out of Alver by the Group’s Packagiggctor
(Verallia). A former State-owned company, Alveroise of Algeria’s leading glass packaging manufactir
and distributors. It has been consolidated as tfwrsecond half of 2011.

On June 20, 2011, Saint-Gobain announced the puestpent of the initial public offering of a minoriigterest
in Verallia due to very adverse market conditions.
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Impact on the consolidated balance sheet

The impact on the balance sheet at December 32,d0hanges in Group structure and in consolidatiethods
was as follows:

Companies Companies Total
consolidated for  removed from
the first time the scope o
(in EUR millions) consolidation
Impact on assets
Non-current assets 343 (45) 298
Inventories 147 (22) 125
Trade accounts receivable 131 (15) 116
Other current assets excluding cash and cash éeuisa 37 3) 34
658 (85) 573
Impact on equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ equity and minority interests 25 44 69
Provisions for pensions and other employee benefits 18 Q) 17
Non-current liabilities 20 Q) 19
Trade accounts payable 131 (8) 123
Other payables and accrued expenses 76 (5) 71
270 29 299

Enterprise value of consolidated companies
acquired/divested (a) 388 (114) 274
Impact on consolidated net debt

Impact on cash and cash equivalents (15) 0 (15)
Impact on net debt excluding cash and cash equitsa(b) 65 (33) 32
50 (33) 17

Acquisitions/disposals of shares in consolidated ogpanies
net of cash acquired/divested (a) - (b) 323 (81) 242

" Corresponding to the debt, short-term credit il and cash and cash equivalents of acquiresitid companies.
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NOTE 3 — ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

On January 14, 2013, Saint-Gobain entered intousixe negotiations with the Ardagh Group concerrtime
latter’s offer to acquire Verallia North Americahd binding and irrevocable offer is not conditionpbn financing
being arranged. The balance sheet accounts oflieexarth America at December 31, 2012 have theeefeen
combined and reported in the consolidated baldmeetsunder “Assets held for sale” and “Liabilitredd for sale”,
except for debt towards other Group companies guitye

In accordance with IAS 12, a deferred tax asseting to the cumulative reserves carried in respédterallia
North America was recognized in 2012 for an amof@®20 million.

Assets and liabilities held for sale

Dec. 31, 2012
(in EUR millions)
Goodwill and other intangible assets 195
Property, plant and equipment, net 449
Other non-current assets 12
Inventories, trade accounts receivable and othsowads receivable 279
Cash and cash equivalents 1
Total assets held to sale 936
Provisions for pensions and other employee benefits 348
Deferred tax liabilities and other non-current ligies 6
Trade accounts payable, other payables and acexpethses, and other current 143
liabilities
Short term debt and bank overdrafts 0
Total liabilities held for sale 497
Commitments

Verallia North America’s off-balance sheet committsehave been excluded from the Group’s off-balesmeet
commitments at December 31, 2012. They concermefutiinimum lease payments due under non-cancellable
operating leases and other commitments for appraigign€50 million (Note 27).

Employees

The average number of employees of Verallia NortieAca (4,416 in 2012) is included in the averagalver of
Group employees for the year (Note 32).
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NOTE 4 — GOODWILL

2012 2011

(in EUR millions)
At January 1

Gross value 11,903 11,560

Accumulated impairment (862) (530)
Net 11,041 11,030
Movements during the year

Changes in Group structure 143 248

Reclassification to assets held for sale (291) 0

Impairment (67) (309)

Translation adjustments 10 72
Total (105) 11
At December 31

Gross value 11,765 11,903

Accumulated impairment (829) (862)
Net 10,936 11,041

In 2012, movements in goodwill mainly arose fronages in the scope of consolidation, with the asition
of Celotex by the Construction Products Sector Bnassette by the Building Distribution Sector, ahe
reclassification as "Assets held for sale" of thimaining Verallia North America goodwill (Note 3).

In 2011, movements in goodwill mainly correspondedi) changes in the scope of consolidation, wita
acquisition of Solar Gard by the Innovative Matkri&ector and Build Center by the Building Disttibn
Sector, and (ii) the write-down of Gypsum assetdanth America and of Building Distribution goodwil
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NOTE 5 — OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Patents Non- Software  Develop- Other Total
amortizable ment costs

(in EUR millions) brands
At January 1, 2011

Gross value 124 2,747 798 60 301 4,030

Accumulated amortization and impairment (104) (642) 2)(4 (175) (963)
Net 20 2,747 156 18 126 3,067
Movements during the year

Changes in Group structure and reclassifications 13 0 1 24 a7

Acquisitions 3 59 19 11 92

Disposals Q) 1)

Translation adjustments 31 (1) 1 31

Amortization and impairment 3) (70) (6) 9) (88)
Total movements 13 31 (3) 14 26 81
At December 31, 2011

Gross value 141 2,778 834 80 334 4,167

Accumulated amortization and impairment (108) (681) 8)(4 (182) (1,019)
Net 33 2,778 153 32 152 3,148
Movements during the year

Changes in Group structure and reclassifications 4) (1) 11 2 11 19

Reclassification to assets held for sale 4) 4)

Acquisitions 3 62 36 9 110

Disposals 2) 2) 4)

Translation adjustments 29 (1) 2 26

Amortization and impairment 4) (64) an (14) (99)
Total movements 5) 28 2 21 2 48
At December 31, 2012

Gross value 140 2,806 870 118 342 4,276

Accumulated amortization and impairment (112) (715) 5)(6 (188) (1,080)
Net 28 2,806 155 53 154 3,196

The “Other” column includes amortizable manufactgrbrands totaling €54 million at December 31, 2012
(December 31, 2011: €45 million).
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NOTE 6 — PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Buildings Machinery Assets Total
quarries and under
equipment  construc-
(in EUR millions) tion
At January 1, 2011
Gross value 2,397 8,338 21,047 1,042 32,824
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (394) (4,333)(14,327) (43) (19,097)
Net 2,003 4,005 6,720 999 13,727
Movements during the year
Changes in Group structure and reclassifications 22 26 1 94 4) 238
Acquisitions 73 100 333 1,448 1,954
Disposals (31) (29) (38) (@) (102)
Translation adjustments 8 (33) (59) (13) 97)
Depreciation and impairment (33) (296) (1,161) (5) (549
Transfers 132 812 (944) 0
Total movements 39 0 (19) 478 498
At December 31, 2011
Gross value 2,462 8,529 21,660 1,518 34,169
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (420) (4,524)(14,959) (41) (19,944)
Net 2,042 4,005 6,701 1,477 14,225
Movements during the year
Changes in Group structure and reclassifications 29 5 4 ) 44 115
Reclassification to assets held for sale (10) (66) 8)33 (35) (449)
Acquisitions 65 97 432 1,197 1,791
Disposals (14) a7 (32) ©) (70)
Translation adjustments (13) ) (48) (31) (94)
Depreciation and impairment (43) (311) (1,407) (61) 2238
Transfers 239 948 (1,187) 0
Total movements 14 (15) (448) (80) (529)
At December 31, 2012
Gross value 2,512 8,697 21,377 1,500 34,086
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (456) (4,707)(15,124) (103) (20,390)
Net 2,056 3,990 6,253 1,397 13,696

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment dgr2012 included assets acquired under finance ddasan
amount of €18 million (2011: €18 million). Thesadnce leases are not included in the cash flowrstatt, in
accordance with IAS 7. At December 31, 2012, tptaperty, plant and equipment acquired under financ
leases amounted to €109 million (December 31, 20119 million) (see Note 27).
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NOTE 7 — INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

2012 2011

(in EUR millions)
At January 1

Equity in associates 129 120

Goodwill 38 17
Investments in associates 167 137
Movements during the year

Changes in Group structure 31 31

Translation adjustments 2 (3)

Transfers, share issues and other movements 0 0

Dividends paid (6) (6)

Share in net income of associ: 12 8
Total movements 39 30
At December 31

Equity in associates 157 129

Goodwill 49 38
Investments in associates 206 167

Investments in associates include shares in Coragadustrial El Volcan, which is listed on the Sagbd de
Chile stock exchange. At December 31, 2012, theketaralue of the shares was higher than the caryin
amount of the Group's equity in the company’s ssets.

Annual net sales recorded in the individual finah@tatements of associates totaled €984 millior20t2
(2011: €858 million) and their aggregate net incaw@led €32 million (2011: €27 million). At Deceeb
31, 2012, total assets and liabilities of these mames amounted to €1,082 million and €535 million,
respectively (December 31, 2011: €941 million aA8%million).
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NOTE 8 — OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Available-for- Capitalized Pension plar Total
sale and othe loans anc surpluses
securities deposits

(in EUR millions)
At January 1, 2011

Gross value 43 218 37 298

Provisions for impairment in value (18) (8) (26)
Net 25 210 37 272
Movements during the year

Changes in Group structure 8 Q) 7

Increases/(decreases) 4) 70 14 80

Movements in provisions for impairment in value 1) 1) ( 2

Translation adjustments (8) 1 @)

Transfers and other movements 1 4) 3
Total movements 4 56 15 75
At December 31, 2011

Gross value 48 273 52 373

Provisions for impairment in value (19) 7 (26)
Net 29 266 52 347
Movements during the year

Changes in Group structure 1 1 2

Increases/(decreases) 14 27 4 45

Movements in provisions for impairment in value 1 1

Translation adjustments (©) 1 2)

Transfers and other movements (©) (32) (34)
Total movements 12 5) 5 12
At December 31, 2012

Gross value 59 266 57 382

Provisions for impairment in value (18) (5) (23)
Net 41 261 57 359

The change in impairment provisions on other nameru assets in 2012 reflects €1 million in adai§¢2011:

€3 million) and €2 million in reversals (2011: €1llian).

Verallia North America assets classified as heldstle amounted to €12 million and are includethaabove

table under "Transfers and other movements”.

As discussed in Note 1, available-for-sale andradbeurities are measured at fair value.
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NOTE 9 — INVENTORIES

December 31 December 31

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011
Gross value
Raw materials 1,463 1,634
Work in progress 249 279
Finished goods 4,910 5,027
Gross inventories 6,622 6,940

Provisions for impairment in value

Raw materials (134) (132)
Work in progress (20) (8)
Finished goods (345) (323)
Provisions for impairment in value (489) (463)
Net 6,133 6,477

In 2012, cost of sales came to €33,046 million 2&B1,763 million).

Impairment losses on inventories recorded in thé22thcome statement totaled €174 million (2011:
€138 million). Impairment reversals, due to incema# the net realizable value of inventories, amed to
€130 million in 2012 (2011: €111 million) and werxorded as a deduction from impairment lossesher
year.

31



Group Saint-Gobain Consolidated Financial Statement

NOTE 10 — TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

December 31 December 31

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011
Gross value 5,512 5,821
Provisions for impairment in value (495) (480)
Trade accounts receivable 5,017 5,341
Advances to suppliers 621 550
Prepaid payroll taxes 20 25
Other prepaid and recoverable taxes (other
than income tax) 351 380
Other 438 456
Less:
France 94 100
Other Western European countries 165 168
North America 22 19
Emerging countries and Asia 157 169
Provisions for impairment in value (5) 3)
Other receivables 1,425 1,408

The change in impairment provisions for trade ant®receivable in 2012 reflects €107 million in iidds (2011:
€87 million) and €98 million in reversals (2011 0&1million) — resulting from recoveries as wellvaste-offs. Bad
debt write-offs are also reported under this capfior €71 million (2011: €94 million).

Net past-due trade receivables amounted to €87bmit December 31, 2012, after deducting prowisiof
€436 million (December 31, 2011: €843 million, aftdeducting provisions of €411 million), including
€206 million over three months past due (Decembep@11: €198 million).

NOTE 11 - EQUITY

Number of shares outstanding

At December 31, 2012, Compagnie de Saint-Gobaiagstal stock comprised 531,125,642 shares of common
stock with a par value of €4 each, all in the satass (December 31, 2011: 535,563,723 shares).

During 2012, 4,387,680 new shares were issued tolhmes of the 2012 Group Savings Plan at a pric28f59,
representing total proceeds of €125 million.

At the Annual General Meeting of June 9, 2011, efnaiders authorized the Board of Directors of Caynpade

Saint-Gobain to:

» Issue, on one or several occasions, up to 106 233w shares with pre-emptive subscription rigbts
existing shareholders and debt securities withmsemptive rights but with a priority subscriptioght (10" to
14" resolutions/26-month authorization commencing JyrkH11);
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» Issue, on one or several occasions, up to 13,2008® shares to members of the Group Savings P& (
resolution/26-month authorization commencing June2011). The authorization was used to grant
4,387,680 shares under the 2012 Group Savings Plan.

At the Annual General Meeting of June 7, 2012, efngiders authorized the Board of Directors of Caynpade

Saint-Gobain to:

* Grant performance stock-options exercisable foresheepresenting up to 1% of capital stock on tleetivig
date, i.e. 5,310,526 options exercisable for ttmeesaumber of shares (Mesolution/26—month authorization
commencing June 7, 2012);

* Make performance share grants representing uB% Of the capital stock on the Meeting date, irants of
4,248,420 shares (TEesqution/ZG—month authorization commencing Jun2012). If this authorization were
to be used, the performance shares would be dedirc the shares available for the stock-opticenpl
authorized in the T4resolution.

The Board of Directors used this authorization mvédnber 22, 2012 to grant 542,370 performance Slaare
253,000 performance stock-options.

If all outstanding stock-options were to be exemtjswith the issue of new shares, this would pitinhave the
effect of increasing the number of shares outstgnth 557,630,521. In addition, if the authorizasialescribed
above were to be used in full, this would potelytinhve the effect of increasing the number of abautstanding
to 677,277,997.

At the Annual General Meeting of June 7, 2012 Bbard of Directors was also authorized to issuekstearrants
in the event of a public tender offer for the Compsa shares, in accordance with the French Act efdid 31,
2006 on takeover bids (8esolution). Under this authorization, the Grougyrissue up to €536 million worth of
stock (excluding premiums), representing 134, 1@Dgb@res.

Treasury stock

Saint-Gobain shares held or controlled by Compadei8aint-Gobain and Saint-Gobain Corporation laogva

as a deduction from shareholders’ equity under &3uey stock” at historical cost. At December 31120
4,691,065 shares were held in treasury (Decemhe2@11: 9,358,027). In 2012, 8,727,221 shares \weught
back on the market (2011: 10,180,347) and 3,854,4B&es were sold (2011: 5,936,217). In 2012,
9,540,000 shares were cancelled.

The liquidity contract set up with Exane BNP Pasiloa November 16, 2007 was rolled over in 2012201dl.

In addition, for the purposes of a compensatiom gkt up in January 2008 for certain employeehénnited
States, Compagnie de Saint-Gobain shares are lyela tbust administered by Wachovia Bank, National
Association. These shares are treated as beingotiedt by Saint-Gobain Corporation in the consdkda
financial statements.

NOTE 12 — STOCK-OPTION PLANS
Compagnie de Saint-Gobain has stock-option plaasadle to certain employees.
Stock options are exercisable for Saint-Gobaineshat a price based on the average share pridbdaz0

trading days preceding the grant date. Since 1869stock-options have been granted at a discoutheo
average price.
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Since the November 2007 plan, all stock-optionssalgect to a 4-year vesting period. Under eagians, the
vesting period was three years for non-residents faar years for tax residents. Options must beased
within 10 years of the date of grant. All rightsdptions are forfeited if the holder leaves the Wprounless
expressly agreed otherwise by both the ChairmanCinef Executive Officer of Compagnie de Saint-Goba
and the Appointments Committee of the Board of QoEs.

The options granted between 1999 and 2002 wereisabte for existing shares, while those grantdd/éen
2003 and 2007 were exercisable for new sharesplaos launched between 2008 and 2011, the origtheof
shares is determined at the latest at the endeofdbting period, with any options exercised begaid decision
is made being exercised for new shares. The opgiarged in 2012 are exercisable for new shares.

Until 2008, options were subject to a performanmedition for certain categories of grantees onlgc& 2009,
the plans are subject to a performance conditioalf@rantees.

For options granted under the 2012 plan, the vaiesl to calculate the 30&6ntribution socialetax due by
grantees employed by French companies in the Geo€p.49 per option.

Movements relating to stock-options outstanding0al1 and 2012 are summarized below:

Average

EUR 4 par exercise price

value shares (in EUR)
Options outstanding at December 31, 2010 28,748,648 41.27

Options granted 482,15( 31.22

Options exercised (724,853 33.8¢
Options forfeited (2,706,502) 38.97
Options outstanding at December 31, 2011 25,799,443 41.54

Options granted 253,00( 27.71
Options exercised (815,091) 21.68
Options forfeited (855,949) 30.13
Options outstanding at December 31, 2012 24,381,403 42.46

" Including 362,795 options under the 2002 plan tviicpired on November 20, 2012 and 493,154 optiodsr the 2009 plan that were cancelled due to the
performance targets being only partly met.
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Stock-option expense recorded in the income stateamounted to €2 million in 2012 (2011: €14 mitljo
The fair value of options granted in 2012 amountefll million.

The table below summarizes information about simutiens outstanding at December 31, 2012, afténgak
into account the partial fulfillment of the perfaance criteria attached to certain plans:

Options exercisable Options not exercisable Total optlgns
outstanding
Grantdate [ Exercise price Number of  Weighted averagel Exercise price  Number of Number of Type of options
(in EUR) options contractual life (in EUR) options options
(in months)
2003 32.26 2,719,371 11 2,719,371 subscription
2004 39.39 3,955,094 P3 3,955,094 Subscription
2005 41.34 4,051,181 5 4,051,181 Subscription
2006 52.52 4,306,454 47 4,306,454 Subscription
2007 64.72 3,403,171 59 3,403,171 Subscription
2008 25.88 3,080,346 1 3,080,346 Subscription
2009 83 36.34 985,906 985,906 Subscription or Purchase
2010 95 35.19 1,144,730 1,144,730 Subscription or Purchase
2011 107| 31.22 482,150 482,150 Subscription or Purchase
2012 119 27.71 253,000 253,000 Subscription
Total 21,515,617 2,865,786 24,381,403

At December 31, 2012, 21,515,617 stock-options wgegcisable (at an average price of €43.56) and
2,865,786 options (average price €34.26) had notesed.

NOTE 13 — GROUP SAVINGS PLAN ("PEG")

The PEG Group Savings Plan is an employee stoathase plan open to all Group employees in Franddran
most other countries where the Group does busigégghle employees must have completed a miniméthree
months’ service with the Group. The purchase poicthe shares, as set by the Chairman and Chiefuiixe
Officer on behalf of the Board of Directors, copends to the average of the opening share pricetedwver
the 20 trading days preceding the pricing date.

In 2012, the Group issued 4,387,680 shares witr aglue of €4 (2011: 4,497,772 shares) to mendiahe PEG,
for a total of €125 million (2011: €150 million).

In some years, as well as the standard plans,agsérplans are offered to employees in countriesavthis is
allowed under local law and tax rules.

= Standard plans

Under the standard plans, eligible employees dezenf the opportunity to invest in Saint-Gobaircktat a 20%
discount. The stock is subject to a five or 10-yeak-up, except following the occurrence of certavents. The
compensation cost recorded in accordance with IERSmeasured by reference to the fair value ofseodnt
offered on restricted stock (i.e. stock subjea tock-up). The cost of the lock-up for the empbigdefined as the
cost of a two-step strategy that involves firslisglthe restricted stock forward five or 10 yeansl then purchasing
the same number of shares on the spot market aadcfhg the purchase with debt. The borrowing t®st
estimated at the rate that would be charged bynk tmaan individual with an average risk profile fo general
purpose 5- or 10-year consumer loan repayable atritygsee Note 1 for details of the calculation).
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The standard plan cost recorded in the incomensgateamounted to €0 in 2012 (2011: €6.7 milliorg, of the
lock-up cost for employees of €18.7 million (20€20.6 million).

The following table shows the main features of stendard plans, the amounts invested in the pladstlze
valuation assumptions applied in 2012 and in 2011:

2012 2011
Plan characteristics
Grant date 26 March 28 March
Plan duration (in years) 5o0r10 5o0r 10
Benchmark price (in EUR)) 35.73 41.77
Purchase price (in EUR)) 28.59 33.42
Discount (in %) 20.00% 20.00%

@ Total discount on the grant date (in %) 17.60% 22.50%
Employee investments (in EUR millions) 125.4 150.3
Total number of shares purchased 4,387,680 4,497,772
Valuation assumptions
Interest rate paid by employées 6.35% 6.50%
5-year risk-free interest rate 1.75% 2.86%
Repo rate 0.40% 0.40%

®) Lock-up discount (in %) 20.18% 16.97%
Total cost to the Group (in %) (a-b) -2.58% 5.53%

" A 0.5-point decline in borrowing costs for the doype would have no impact on the 2012 cost asileddd in accordance with IFRS 2.
= Leveraged plans

No leveraged plans were set up in 2012 or in 2011.

NOTE 14 — PERFORMANCE SHARE AND PERFORMANCE UNIT PLANS

Various performance share plans have been set Gaibi-Gobain since 2009 and one performance lanit\was
set up in 2012. As of December 31, 2012, five perémce share plans and one performance unit plae we
outstanding:

* A worldwide plan authorized by Saint-Gobain’s BoafdDirectors on November 19, 2009 whereby eligible
employees and officers of the Group in France d&mdaal were each awarded seven performance shies. T
shares were subject to a performance conditionchwiveis met, and would have been forfeited if tlantgre
had left the Group before the end of the vestimgpgeln all, 1,359,960 performance shares vestettuthe
plan, as follows:

- For eligible Group employees in France, Spain &g, Ithe vesting period ended on March 29, 2012 an
the shares were delivered on March 30, 2012. Theingeperiod has been followed by a 2-year lock-up,
such that the shares may not be sold until Marchi2814 except in the case of the grantee’s death or
disability;

- For eligible Group employees in all other countries vesting period will end on March 30, 2014 Hrel
shares will be delivered on March 31, 2014. No{opkperiod will apply.
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» A performance share plan for eligible employeesdffiders of the Group in France and abroad autkdrby

the Board of Directors on November 19, 2009. Trareshwere subject to a performance condition, wiia$

met, and would have been forfeited if the grantelaft the Group before the end of the vestingpgein all,

622,790 performance shares were awarded, as follows

- For eligible Group employees in France, the vegteigod ended on March 29, 2012 and the shares were
delivered on March 30, 2012. The vesting period lbeen followed by a 2-year lock-up, such that the
shares may not be sold until March 31, 2014 exoepie case of the grantee’s death or disability;

- For eligible Group employees in all other couniries vesting period will end on March 30, 2014 Hrel
shares will be delivered on March 31, 2014. No {opkperiod will apply.

» A performance share plan for eligible employeesdffiders of the Group in France and abroad autedrby
the Board of Directors on November 18, 2010. Trereshare subject to a performance condition ardbeil
forfeited if the grantee leaves the Group before #md of the vesting period. In all, an estimated
737,550 performance shares may vest under thegddallows:

- For eligible Group employees in France, the vegtiergpd will end on March 29, 2013 and the shariéis w
be delivered on March 30, 2013. The vesting pewddbe followed by a 2-year lock-up, such that the
shares may not be sold until March 31, 2015 exoepie case of the grantee’s death or disability;

- For eligible Group employees outside France, tiséing period will end on March 30, 2015 and theaha
will be delivered on March 31, 2015. No lock-upipémwill apply.

« A performance share plan for eligible employeesddfiders of the Group in France and abroad autedrby
the Board of Directors on November 24, 2011. Trereshare subject to a performance condition ardbeil
forfeited if the grantee leaves the Group befoeeethd of the vesting period. In all, 942,920 pentamce shares
may vest under the plan, as follows:

- For eligible Group employees in France, the vegtiergpd will end on March 29, 2014 and the shariéis w
be delivered on March 30, 2014. The vesting pewddbe followed by a 2-year lock-up, such that the
shares may not be sold until March 31, 2016 exodpie case of the grantee’s death or disability;

- For eligible Group employees outside France, tiséing period will end on March 30, 2016 and theaha
will be delivered on March 31, 2016. No lock-upipemwill apply.

» A performance share plan for certain eligible mansigand senior executives of the Saint-Gobain Group
outside France authorized by the Board of DireatarBlovember 22, 2012. Eligibility is based ongnantee’s
period of service with the Group and on a perfortearcriterion. The plan involves a total of
542,370 performance shares. Grantees will be sédld@xisting shares of the Company. The vestiniggeill
end on November 21, 2016 and the shares will heedetl on November 22, 2016. No lock-up period will

apply.

* A long-term incentive plan involving the award @rformance units for certain eligible managers sewior
executives of the Saint-Gobain Group in Franceaiztbd by the Board of Directors on November 22,20
that will be implemented by the Chairman and Chieécutive Officer of Compagnie de Saint-Gobainallp
536,400 performance units may be awarded. The anitssubject to a performance condition and will be
forfeited if the grantee leaves the Group before éhd of the vesting period. Vested units will tentihe
grantees to a long-term cash incentive determiyedtference to the Saint-Gobain share price. Tleecese
period for the units will run from November 22, 20tb November 21, 2022. The performance units naitl
give rise to the issue of any new shares or tleatibon of any exiting shares.

37



Group Saint-Gobain Consolidated Financial Statement

The table below shows changes in the number obpeaince share rights:

Number of
rights
Number of performance share rights at December 32010 2,720,300
Performance share rights granted in November 2011 2,990
Shares issued/delivered (833)
Lapsed and canceled rights 0
Number of performance share rights at December 32011 3,662,387
Performance share rights granted in November 2012 2,330
Shares issued/delivered (641,669)
Lapsed and canceled rights (897,242)
Number of performance share rights at December 32012 2,665,846

The fair value of the performance shares corresptmthe Saint-Gobain share price on the grantldage(i) the
value of dividends not payable on the shares duhagesting period, and (ii) as for the Group BgsiPlan, less
the discount on restricted stock (i.e. stock sul@@ 4-year lock-up), which has been estimateat@ind 30%.

The compensation cost is recognized over the tvioupryear vesting period of the performance shares

The cost recorded in the income statement fomtbeptans amounted to €12 million in 2012 (2011: £ifion).

The following table shows the expected dates whested performance shares will be issued/deliveneiégrithe
five plans, except in the case of the grantee’thdeadisability or departure from the Group beftre end of the

vesting period:

Number of rights at

End of the vesting

existing

Grant date December 31, 2012 period Type of rights
November 19, 2009 929,768 March 2014 transmitting
November 19, 2009 345,160 March 2014 transmitting
November 18, 2010 437,385 March 2015 transmitting
November 24, 2011 411,163 March 2016 transmitting
November 22, 2012 542,370 November 2016

Total 2,665,846
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NOTE 15 — PROVISIONS FOR PENSIONS AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

December 31

December 31

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011
Pension 2,526 2,544
Length-of-service awards 292 237
Post-employment healthcare benefits 502 504
Total provisions for pensions and other post-emplayent

benefit obligations 3,320 3,285
Healthcare benefits 27 46
Long-term disability benefits 23 29
Other long-term benefits 95 98
Provisions for pensions and other employee benefits 3,465 3,458

The following table shows defined benefit obligasaunder pension and other post-employment bepietis

and the related plan assets:

December 31

December 31

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011
Provisions for pensions and other post-employmenefit 3,320 3,285
obligations

Pension plan surpluses (57) (52)
Net pension and other post-employment benefit oblaions 3,263 3,233
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Changes in pension and other post-employment liestgigations are as follows:

Pension anc Fair value of Other  Net pensior
other post-  plan assets and other
employment post-
benefit employment
obligations benefit
obligations
(in EUR millions)
At January 1, 2011 8,892 (6,224) 38 2,706
Movements during the year
Service cost 180 180
Interest cost/expected return on plan assets 438 (415) 23
Contributions to pension (239) (239)
Employee contributions (29) (29)
Actuarial gains and losses and asset ceiling 595 112 3) ( 704
Currency translation adjustment 236 (159) 77
Benefit payments (451) 362 (89)
Past service cost (86) (86)
Changes in Group structure 2 2
Curtailments/settlements (22) 5 17)
Other 36 (16) (29) 9)
Total movements 928 (369) (32) 527
At December 31, 2011 9,820 (6,593) 6 3,233
Movements during the year
Service cost 188 188
Interest cost/expected return on plan assets 439 (403) 36
Contributions to pension (470) (470)
Employee contributions 14) (14)
Actuarial gains and losses and asset ceiling 1,212 00)(3 10 922
Currency translation adjustment 2 (24) (22)
Benefit payments (493) 393 (100)
Past service cost (194) (194)
Changes in Group structure 39 (23) 16
Curtailments/settlements (5) (5)
Other 8 4) 2) 2
Reclassification to liabilities held for sale 977) 48 (329)
Total movements 219 (197) 8 30
At December 31, 2012 10,039 (6,790) 14 3,263

“The actual return on plan assets came to €703miltir the year (2011: €303 million).
“Including the changes in reference and calculaissumptions in the United Kingdom explained in gaeagraphs on actuarial

assumptions.
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The following tables show the funded status of mansnd other post-employment benefit obligatioys b

geographic area:

December 31, 2012 France Other Western North Rest of the Net total
European America World
(in EUR millions) countries

Defined benefit obligation - funded plans 479 5,730 2,444 147 8,800
Defined benefit obligation - unfunded plans 310 386 500 43 1,239
Fair value of plan assets (285) (4,769) (1,619) (117) ,790)
Deficit/(surplus) 504 1,347 1,325 73 3,249
Asset ceiling 14
Insured plans 0

Net pension and other post-employment benefit oblaions 3,263

December 31, 2011 France Other Western North Rest of the Net total
European America World
(in EUR millions) countries

Defined benefit obligation - funded plans 403 5,210 3,026 139 8,778
Defined benefit obligation - unfunded plans 227 268 507 40 1,042
Fair value of plan assets (182) (4,363) (1,942) (106) ,598)
Deficit/(surplus) 448 1,115 1,591 73 3,227
Asset ceiling 6
Insured plans 0

Net pension and other post-employment benefit oblaions 3,233

41



Group Saint-Gobain Consolidated Financial Statement

Description of defined benefit plans
The Group’s main defined benefit plans are as fedto

In France, in addition to length-of-service awariigre are three defined benefit plans all of wrach final
salary plans. These plans were closed to new éattgnthe companies concerned between 1969 and 1997
Effective March 1, 2012, a new defined benefit ptammplying with Article L.137-11 of France’s Social
Security Code was set up by Compagnie de Sainti@oba

In Germany, retirement plans provide pensions aathdand disability benefits for employees. Thesag
have been closed to new entrants since 1996.

In the Netherlands, ceilings have been introducedi€fined benefit supplementary pension plansyamdhich
they are converted into defined contribution plans.

In the United Kingdom, retirement plans provide giens as well as death and permanent disabilitefiten
These defined benefit plans — which are based oploymes’ average salaries over their final years of
employment — have been closed to new entrants 2b@e.

In the United States and Canada, the Group’s difiemefit plans are final salary plans. Since Jgnlia2001,
new employees have been offered a defined conribptan.

Provisions for other long-term employee benefitoanted to €145 million at December 31, 2012 (Decamb
31, 2011: €173 million), and covered all other emgpk benefits, notably long-service awards in Feanc
jubilees in Germany and employee benefits in théddnStates. The related defined benefit obligai®n
generally calculated on an actuarial basis usieg#ime rules as for pension obligations.

Measurement of pension and other post-employment befit obligations

Pensions and other post-employment benefit obtigatare determined on an actuarial basis usingrtijected
unit credit method, based on estimated final sedari

The Group's total pension and other post-employnbemefit obligations amounted to €10,039 million at
December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2011: €9,820 millio

Plan assets

For defined benefit plans, plan assets have bemgrgssively built up by contributions, primarily tine United
States, the United Kingdom and Germany. Contrilmgtioaid by the Group totaled €470 million in 202011
€239 million). The actual return on plan assetsetmre703 million for the year (2011: €303 million)

The fair value of plan assets — which came to €B,@lion at December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2011:
€6,593 million) — is deducted from the Group's dedi benefit obligation, as estimated using theegatef unit
credit method, in order to calculate the unfundeliation to be covered by a provision.

Plan assets are mainly composed of equities (42%)ands (41%), with the remaining 17% investedthrer
asset classes.
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Projected contributions to pension plans for 20E3estimated at around €155 million.

Actuarial assumptions used to measure defined benebbligations and plan assets

Assumptions related to mortality, employee turncaed future salary increases take into accouné¢baomic
conditions specific to each country and company.

The assumptions used in 2012 for the main plans agfollows:

France Other European countries United States

Euro zone United Kingdom

(in %)

Discount rate 3.25% 3.25% 4.15% 3.75%
Salary increases 2.50% 2.00% a 2.60% 2.00% 3.00%
Expected return on plan assets 5.00% 4.00% a 5.25% 5%5.8 8.75%
Inflation rate 1.90% 1.75% a 2.00% 1.65% 2.00%

A cap applies to the reference salaries used tuledé benefit entitiements.

The assumptions used in 2011 for the Group's mamspvere as follows:

France Other European countries United States

Euro zone United Kingdom

(in %)

Discount rate 4.75% 4.75% 4.65% 4.50%
Salary increases 2.40% 1.80% a 2.60% 3.30% 3.00%
Expected return on plan assets 5.00%  4.00% a 5.25% 5%6.8 8.75%
Inflation rate 1.80%  1.50% a 2.00% 1.80% 2.10%

Discount rates were set by region or country basedbserved bond rates at December 31, 2012.

A 0.5-point decrease (increase) in the discourd vabuld lead to an increase (decrease) in defireerbfi
obligations of around €200 million for the North &ntan plans, €200 million for the euro-zone plans
€325 million for the UK plans. A 0.5-point increasgethe inflation rate would lead to an overall iease in
defined benefit obligations of €485 million.

The same assumptions concerning mortality, employeever and interest rates are used to deterthiee
Group's defined benefit obligations for other ldegn employee benefits. In the United States, aesir
healthcare costs are projected to rise by 7.78%e¢sar. A 1-point increase in this rate would lea@n increase
in the related defined benefit obligation of arod@ad million.

Since December 31, 2011, the inflation rate usetheyGroup to adjust pension benefits in the Uniedjdom
has been based on the Consumer Price Index (@Rajldition, calculation assumptions in the Unitédgdom
have been partly modified by the introduction, B2, of a cap on reference salaries and the adgustof
benefit entitlements for employees taking earljreatent or retiring for health reasons. The resgltieduction
in the related benefit obligation, for the amoufitE@40 million in 2012, has been recognized undeast
service cost” in the table analyzing changes irsjpenand other post-employment benefit obligations.
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Expected rates of return on plan assets are estinmt country and by plan, taking into accountdHterent
classes of assets held by the plan and the ouitioible various financial markets. In 2012, firm ggand bond
markets led to a €703 million increase in plan &ssersus an estimated €403 million based on tpectzd
return on the assets. A 50 bps change in the dstiraturn on plan assets would have a roughlyngiiton

impact on profit for the year.

Actuarial gains and losses

In 2006, the Group elected to apply the optionlaiste under IAS 19 and to record in equity actuayaans and
losses and the change in the asset ceiling. In 20922 million was recognized in equity (increase i
provisions). This amount corresponds to €1,212ionillin actuarial differences, including a €60 noitli
experience adjustment (corresponding to the efiglctifferences between previous actuarial asswonptand
what has actually occurred), €10 million due to thising of the asset ceiling, and a €300 millinaréase in
plan assets.

The defined benefit obligation, asset ceiling arpegience adjustments recognized in the last feary are as
follows:

(in EUR millions 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Defined benefit obligation 10,039 9,820 8,892 7,999 6,803
Fair value of plan assets (6,790) (6,593) (6,224) (5,384) (4,976)
Plan (surplus)/deficit 3,249 3,227 2,668 2,615 1,827
Experience actuarial gain (loss) as a % of thenefi 0.6 0.1 (0.4) (0.5) 0.4

benefit obligation

Plan surpluses and the asset ceiling

When plan assets exceed the defined benefit oladigathe excess is recognized in other non-curassets
under “Plan surplus” (see Note 8) provided thatoitresponds to future economic benefits. The asséng
corresponds to the maximum future economic ber@fianges in the asset ceiling are recognized iityequ

Contributions to insured plans

This item corresponded to amounts payable in theduto insurance companies under the externafigedd
pension plans for Group employees in Spain. Thesmiats were fully repaid at June 30, 2011.

Plan surpluses and provisions for pensions and othg@ost-employment benefits classified as assets and
liabilities held for sale

In accordance with IFRS 5, the provisions for pensiand other post-employment benefits for employde
Verallia North America were classified as liabégi held for sale at December 31, 2012, for an amofn
€329 million. Including provisions for other longrtn benefits in the amount of €19 million, the k@mount
reclassified as "Liabilities held for sale" was 834illion (Note 3).
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Employee benefits expense

The cost of the Group's pension and other post@mpnt benefit plans (excluding other employee btxés
as follows:

(in EUR millions 2012 2011
Service cost 188 180
Interest cost 439 438
Expected return on plan assets (403) (415)
Curtailments and settlements (199) (103)
Pensions, length-of-service awards and other postaployment

benefits 25 100
Employee contributions (14) (19)
Total 11 81

Additional information about defined contribution p lans

Contributions to defined contribution plans for 20Xepresented an estimated €681 million (2011:
€645 million), including €473 million for governmegponsored basic pension schemes (2011: €453m)ijlli
€138 million for government-sponsored supplementggnsion schemes, mainly in France (2011:
€141 million), and €70 million for corporate-spore supplementary pension plans (2011: €51 million)
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NOTE 16 — CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES

The pre-tax income of consolidated companies fslisns:

2012 2011
(in EUR millions)
Net income 796 1,360
Less:
Share in net income of associates 12 8
Income taxes (476) (656)
Pre-tax income of consolidated companies 1,260 2,008
Income tax expense breaks down as follows:
2012 2011
(in EUR millions)
Current taxes (612) (662)
France (151) (206)
Outside France (461) (556)
Deferred taxes 136 6
France 60 (12)
Outside France 76 18
Total income tax expense (476) (656)
The effective tax rate breaks down as follows:
(in %) 2012 2011
Tax rate in France 34.4 34.4
Impact of tax rates outside France (3.8) (5.9)
Impact of 2011 Finance Law in France (add-in 5%) 1.7 1.7
Impact of 2012 Finance Law in France 1.6 0.0
Capital gains and losses and asset impairments 4.3 3.8
Provisions for deferred tax assets 4.3 0.8
Effect of changes in future tax rates 3.7) (1.1)
Research tax credit (1.6) (0.7)
Other deferred and miscellaneous taxes 0.6 (0.3)

Effective tax rate 37.8 32.7
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In the balance sheet, changes in net deferredstet and liability break down as follows:

Net deferred tax
assets/(liability)
(in EUR millions)

At January 1, 2011 (209)
Deferred tax (expense)/benefit 6
Changes in deferred taxes on actuarial gains asgsorecognized in accordance with 240
IAS 19 (note 15)

Translation adjustments 25
Impact of changes in Group structure and other (6)

At December 31, 2011 56
Deferred tax (expense)/benefit 136
Changes in deferred taxes on actuarial gains asgsorecognized in accordance with 293
IAS 19 (note 15)

Translation adjustments (19)
Impact of changes in Group structure and other (22)
At December 31, 2012 444

The table below shows the principal componentdefdeferred tax:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
(in EUR millions)

Deferred tax assets 1,236 949
Deferred tax liabilities (792) (893)
Net deferred tax 444 56
Pensions 935 948
Brands (781) (799)
Depreciation & amortization, accelerated capitivahnces and tax-driven provisions (1,005) (1,182)
Tax loss carryforwards 748 584
Other 547 505
Total 444 56

Deferred taxes are offset at the level of eactetdity, i.e., by tax group where applicable (maiimyrance, the
United Kingdom, Spain, Germany, the United Statebthe Netherlands).

Deferred tax assets of €1,236 million were recagphiat December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2011: €949
million). They include deferred tax assets of €Fiion in the United States that are expecteddadrovered
within the maximum utilization period of 20 yeaemnd €174 million in Germany, where the “Organschaft
group relief system allows deferred tax assetsetadzovered within a short period. Deferred tabilities
recognized at December 31, 2012 amounted to €78®m{December 31, 2011: €893 million), including
€291 million in France and €197 million in the WutKingdom. Deferred tax liabilities recognizeddther
countries represented considerably smaller amounts.

Deferred tax assets whose recovery is not conslderebable totaled €261 million at December 31,201
(December 31, 2011: €190 million) and are fullyraed.
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In France,the taxe professionnelllcal business tax has been replaced, from 20§0thé Contribution
Economique TerritorialCET), a two-part tax. In accordance with IAS fi# portion of the tax assessed on
the value added by the busineSsfjsation sur la Valeur Ajoutée des EnterpriseéS\fAE has been included in
income tax for the period, because it is assessetewenues net of expenses, particularly in thddBig
Distribution sector which represents roughly 50%hef Group’s revenue in France.

NOTE 17 — OTHER CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Provisions Provisions Provisions Provisions Provisions Provisions Total Investment Total
for claims for environ- for restruc- for for  for other  provision related
and mental turing costs personnel customer contin-  for other liabilities
litigation risks costs warranties gencies liabilities

(in EUR millions)
At January 1, 2011

Current portion 100 37 117 45 100 113 512 15 527

Non-current portion 1,338 137 120 47 157 286 2,085 143 2,228
Total 1,438 174 237 92 257 399 2,597 158 2,755
Movements during the year

Additions 151 18 87 23 119 88 486 486

Reversals 1) (13) (32) (13) (34) 77) (170) (170)

Utilizations (102) 9) (100) (24) (90) (66) (391) (391)

Changes in Group structure 0 0 1 0 0 1) 0 9 9

Other (reclassifications and translation adjustsjent 15 1) (20) (5) 3 23 25 162 187
Total movements 63 (5) (54) (19) 2) (33) (50) 171 121
At December 31, 2011

Current portion 117 33 93 36 113 137 529 204 733

Non-current portion 1,384 136 90 37 142 229 2,018 125 2,143
Total 1,501 169 183 73 255 366 2,547 329 2,876
Movements during the year

Additions 157 8 151 24 95 88 523 523

Reversals @) ) 37) 8) (24) (53) (131) (131)

Utilizations 97) (13) (112) (18) (66) 77) (383) (383)

Changes in Group structure 0 0 5 1 0 4 10 10

Other (reclassifications and translation adjustsjent (6) (11) (5) (5) 4) 9 (22) (245) (267)
Total movements 47 (18) 2 (6) 1 (29) ) (245) (248)
At December 31, 2012

Current portion 102 16 98 32 105 102 455 2 457

Non-current portion 1,446 135 87 35 151 235 2,089 82 2,171
Total 1,548 151 185 67 256 337 2,544 84 2,628
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Provisions for claims and litigation

In 2012, provisions for claims and litigation cosér potential costs arising from investigations e t
competition authorities involving the Flat Glasssimess and from asbestos-related litigation. Tipeseisions
are described in further detail in Note 28.

Provisions for environmental risks

Provisions for environmental risks cover coststmetato environmental protection measures, as aglkite
rehabilitation and clean-up costs.

Provisions for restructuring costs

Provisions for restructuring costs came to €185lionil at December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2011:
€183 million), including net additions of €114 ol during the year. The provisions primarily comce
Benelux (€42 million), Germany (€44 million), Fran(€31 million) and the United Kingdom (€28 milljon
Provisions for personnel costs

These provisions primarily cover indemnities duemaployees that are unrelated to the Group’s reizgaon
plans.

Provisions for customer warranties

These provisions cover the Group’s commitments utitewarranties granted to customers in the Urittiades
and other markets. They are determined on a $tatigfasis using a range of criteria and take axtoount
contractual warranty payments made in prior yearthé business and region concerned. In additjpecific
provisions may be set aside for identified risks.

Provisions for other contingencies

At December 31, 2012, provisions for other contirgies amounted to €337 million and mainly concerned
France (€124 million), Germany (€97 million), Lathmerica (€43 million), Italy (€23 million) and thénited
States (€15 million).

Investment-related liabilities

Changes in investment-related liabilities primarilgsulted from the settlement and delivery of faxiva
purchases of treasury stock.
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NOTE 18 — TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCR UED EXPENSES

December 31 December 31

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011
Trade accounts payable 6,143 6,018
Customer deposits 795 791
Payable to suppliers of non-current assets 298 374
Grants received 125 99
Accrued personnel expenses 1,173 1,177
Accrued taxes other than on income 408 434
Other 609 687
France 89 119
Germany 57 51
United Kingdom 120 111
Other Western European countries 109 135
North America 32 60
Emerging countries and Asia 202 211
Total other payables and accrued expenses 3,408 3,562

Trade and other accounts payable are due mainhjinvine year, with the result that their carryimgoant
approximates fair value.

NOTE 19 — RISK FACTORS

MARKET RISKS (LIQUIDITY, INTEREST RATE, FOREIGN EXCHANGE, ENERGY AND CREDIT
RISKS)

Liquidity risk on financing

In a crisis environment, the Group could be undbleaise the financing or refinancing needed toecats
investment plans on the credit market or the chpitarket, or to obtain such financing or refinamgion
acceptable terms.

There is also no guarantee that the Company'stcegitig will remain at the current level.

The Group's overall exposure to liquidity risk oet rdebt is managed by the Treasury and Financing
Department of Compagnie de Saint-Gobain. Excepgpiecial cases, all of the Group companies' long-ter
financing needs and the majority of their shortriéinancing needs are met by Compagnie de Sainti@alr

by the Delegations' cash pools.

The main objective of liquidity risk management ggsses is to guarantee that the Group’s finan@ogess
will be rolled over and to optimize annual borrogicosts. Long-term debt therefore systematicajtyesents a
high percentage of overall debt. At the same tifme maturity schedules of long-term debt are setish a way
that replacement capital markets issues are spneadime.
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Medium-term notes are the main source of long-tnancing used by the Group, along with bonds. Have
it also uses perpetual bonds, participating seearibank borrowings and lease financing.

Short-term debt is composed mainly of borrowingslarnFrench Commercial PapeBillets de Trésorerie
programs and, from time-to-time, Euro Commerciapdtaand US Commercial Paper programs, but also
includes receivables securitization programs andkbaverdrafts. Short-term financial assets comprise
marketable securities and cash equivalents.

To maintain secure sources of financing, Compadei&aint-Gobain has various confirmed syndicatees|of
credit.

A breakdown of long- and short-term debt is prodidey type and maturity in Note 20. The amounts,
currencies, and acceleration clauses of the Grofiipécing programs and confirmed credit lines also
discussed in Note 20.

Saint-Gobain’s long-term debt issues have been BBB with a negative outlook by Standard & Poaiisce
October 29, 2012 and Baa2 with a negative outlgoklbody’s since November 12, 2012.

Liquidity risk on investments

Short-term investments consist of bank depositsranthal fund units. To reduce liquidity or volatlirisk,
whenever possible, the Group invests in money manke/or bond funds.

Interest rate risks

The Group's overall exposure to interest rate deknet debt is managed by the Treasury and Fingncin
Department of Compagnie de Saint-Gobain. Whereidiaibes use derivatives to hedge interest ratesritheir
counterparty is generally Compagnie de Saint-GgolithinGroup's parent company.

The Group's overall exposure to interest rate oiskconsolidated debt is managed primarily withdabgective
of fixing the cost of medium-term debt and optimiziannual borrowing costs. According to Group polibe
derivative financial instruments used to hedgedhisks comprise interest rate swaps, cross-cuyremaps,
options — including caps, floors and swaptions & fanward rate agreements.

Based on a sensitivity analysis of the Group’sito&t debt after hedging, a 50-basis point increaseuro
interest rates at the balance sheet date wouldidead €11 million increase in net income and ®&6ks point
increase in euro and sterling interest rates ap#ence sheet date would lead to a €6 millionease in equity.

Foreign exchange risk

The currency hedging policies described below ctaldnadequate to protect the Group against unéxgpec
sharper than expected fluctuations in exchangs ratilting from economic and financial market ¢boas.
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Foreign exchange risks are managed by hedging cocrahéransactions carried out by Group entities in
currencies other than their functional currenclésmpagnie de Saint-Gobain and its subsidiariesoptens
and forward contracts to hedge exposures arisiogn frurrent and future commercial transactions. The
subsidiaries generally set up options through theu@s parent company, Compagnie de Saint-Gobdiichw
then takes a reverse position on the market.

Most forward contracts have short maturities, @fuad three months. However, forward contracts takdro
hedge firm orders may have terms of up to two years

Wherever possible, foreign exchange risks are hedgth Compagnie de Saint-Gobain upon receipt ef th
orders sent by the subsidiaries, or with the |@elegations' cash pools. In other cases, hedgesoateacted
with the subsidiaries' banks.

The Group monitors its exposure to foreign exchaileusing a monthly reporting system which capsuthe
foreign exchange positions taken by subsidiarieDdcember 31, 2012, 97% of the Group's hedgealdégh
exchange position was hedged.

The net foreign exchange exposure of subsidiariesse functional currency is not one of those priesen
below was as follows at December 31, 2012:

Long Short
(in millions of euro equivalents)
EUR 1 7
usD 4 19
Other currencies 1 3
Total 6 29

Based on a sensitivity analysis at December 312,28110% increase in the exchange rates of the coaiencies
used by subsidiaries would have the following inbgecnet income:

Net gain or
(in EUR millions) loss
EUR 0.7)
UsD (1.5)

A 10% fall in exchange rates would have a revarggact in the same amounts, assuming that all etrgbles
were unchanged.

Energy and raw materials risk
The Group is exposed to changes in the price of materials used in its products and in energy pridée
energy and raw materials hedging programs may bdepuate to protect the Group against significant o

unforeseen price swings that could result frompiferailing financial and economic environment.

The Group may limit its exposure to energy pricetilations by using swaps and options to hedgeopits fuel
oil, natural gas and electricity purchases.
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The swaps and options are mainly contracted irfuhetional currency of the entities concerned. Hesgf gas
and fuel oil purchases are managed by a steerimgmitbee comprising members of the Group Finance
Department, the Group Purchasing Department (Saafiiain Achats - SGA) and the relevant Delegations.

Hedges of energy purchases (excluding fixed-pricelmses negotiated directly with suppliers byRbechasing
Department) are generally arranged by the Groupstmy and Financing Department (or with the Delegat
treasury departments) in accordance with instrastreceived from SGA.

The steering committee does not manage hedgeserdgianed above because:

= the volumes involved are not material, or

= there are no international price indexes used bgllplayers and transactions are therefore basegitioer
administered prices or strictly national indexes.

In both of these cases, local purchasing units geeaergy risk primarily through fixed-price pursha.

The Group may from time to time enter into consact hedge purchases of other commodities, in dacce
with the principles outlined above for energy pasts.

Credit risk

The Group may be exposed to the risk of lossesash and other financial instruments held or manageils
behalf by financial institutions, if any of its aaerparties defaults on its obligations. Group qyols to limit its
exposure by dealing solely with leading countergsrand monitoring their credit ratings, in linettwguidelines
approved by the Board of Directors. However, crediks arising from transactions with financial oterparties
can escalate rapidly and a high credit rating isgonarantee that an institution will not experierceapid
deterioration of its financial position. As a rdstihere is no guarantee that this policy will iieaive in entirely
eliminating counterparty risk. Any default by a oterparty could have a material adverse effecthenGroup's
objectives, operating income and financial position

To limit the Group’s exposure to credit risk, theedsury and Financing Department deals primarilth wi
counterparties with a long-term rating of A- or eddrom Standard & Poor's or A3 or above from Mdsdyith a
stable outlook in both cases. Concentrations dfitcresk are closely monitored to ensure that themain at
reasonable levels.

Note 21 provides details of the Group’s interet# eand energy hedges, and the interest ratesdondin items of

debt. It also provides a breakdown of debt by cuayeand interest rate (fixed or variable), as waslithe interest
rate repricing schedule.
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NOTE 20 — NET DEBT

Long- and short-term debt

Long- and short-term debt consists of the following

December 31, December 31,

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011
Bond issues and Medium-Term Notes 8,989 7,620
Perpetual bonds and participating securities 203 203
Other long-term debt including finance leases 374 347
Debt recognized at fair value under the fair vaipgon 0 156
Fair value of interest rate hedges 22 0

Total long-term debt (excluding current portion) 9,588 8,326

Current portion of long-term debt 1,732 1,656
Short-term financing programs (US CP, Euro Biitets de trésoreri¢ 691 76
Bank overdrafts and other short-term bank borrowing 570 627
Securitizations 89 357
Fair value of derivatives not qualified as hedgedeaibt Q) 2

Short-term debt and bank overdrafts 1,349 1,062

TOTAL GROSS DEBT 12,669 11,044
Cash and cash equivalents (4,179) (2,949)

TOTAL NET DEBT, INCLUDING ACCRUED INTEREST 8,490 8,095

The fair value of gross long-term debt (includihg turrent portion) managed by Compagnie de Saohia(d
amounted to €11.5 billion at December 31, 2012afoarrying amount of €10.6 billion. The fair valofebonds

corresponds to the market price on the last dahefyear. For other borrowings, fair value is cdestd as

being equal to the amount repayable.
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Long-term debt repayment schedule

Long-term debt at December 31, 2012 can be analgzdollows by maturity:

Within1l 1to5years BeyondE Total
(in EUR millions) Currency year years
Bond issues and Medium-Term Notes EUR 1,180 4,329 3,581 9,090
GBP 0 367 668 1,035
JPY 0 44 0 44
Perpetual bonds and participating securities EUR 0 0 3 20 203
. L All i
Other long-term debt including finance leases currencies 141 248 126 515
Debt recognized at fair value under the fair valpgon EUR 155 0 0 155
Fair value of interest rate hedges EUR 0 0 22 22
TOTAL, EXCLUDING ACCRUED INTEREST 1,476 4,988 4,600 11,064

At December 31, 2012, future interest payments msglong-term debt (including the current portion)
managed by Compagnie de Saint-Gobain were dudlaw$o

Within1 1to5 years Beyond £ Total
(in EUR millions) year years
Future interest payments on gross long-term debt 477 1,239 888 2,604

Interest on perpetual bonds and participating seesiis calculated through to 2032.

Bond issues

During 2012, Compagnie de Saint-Gobain carriedtoeifollowing debt management transactions to ektha
average maturity of debt while reducing averagedwing costs:

e Three bond issues:

- on March 28, 2012: placement of €750 million warfl8.625% 10-year bonds due 2022;
- onJune 15, 2012: placement of €750 million woitB.625% 9-year bonds due 2021;

- on October 9, 2012: placement of GBP 250 milliorrtivaf 4.625% 17-year bonds due 2029,
swapped for euros at a fixed rate of approximatedi %.

* Tapissues:

- the €750 million bond issue due 2019 was increaseZb50 million through three tap issues
carried out on January 18 and 19, 2012 for a tt&200 million;

- the €750 million bond issue due 2022 was increase€®00 million through two tap issues
carried out on May 16, 2012 for a total of €150lianil.
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* Private placements:

- onJanuary 13, 2012: issue of JPY 5 billion woifth.80% 5-year private placement notes, due
2017,

- on June 4, 2012: two 4% 20-year private placemem¢snissues due 2032, for a total of
€90 million;

- on June 28, 2012: two 12-year private placemenemassues due 2024, for a total of
€95 million indexed to the 10-year CMS rate (swabfoe a fixed rate of approximately 4.1%);

- on October 8, 2012: two 4% 20-year private placanmeres issues due 2032, for a total of
€50 million;

- on October 9, 2012: a 3.6% 10-year private placémetes issue due 2022, for €100 million.

On April 11, 2012, Compagnie de Saint-Gobain redmbra €1,250 million bond issue that had reached
maturity.

Perpetual bonds

In 1985, Compagnie de Saint-Gobain issued €12%omilvorth of perpetual bonds — 25,000 bonds witlace
value of €5,000 — paying interest at a variable irdexed to Euribor. Interest paid in 2012 amalitde€85.68 per
bond. These securities are not redeemable andtérest paid on them is reported under “Borrowiogis’.

Up to December 31, 2012, 18,496 perpetual bonddead bought back and canceled, and 6,504 perjemnds
were outstanding, representing a total face val&@3® million.

Participating securities

In June 1983, Compagnie de Saint-Gobain issue@ 228 non-voting participating securities with adasalue
of FRF 1,000. Their face value is now €152.45 gfelhg their conversion into euros in 1999.

Interest on the securities ranges from 75% to 186%e average bond rate ("TMOQO"), depending onl¢kel of
Saint-Gobain's consolidated net income. Intereist ipas2012 amounted to €6.82 per security.

In April 1984, Compagnie de Saint-Gobain also igdst84,633 participating securities with a face eabi
ECU 1,000 (now €1,000).

Interest comprises (i) a fixed portion of 7.5% pear applicable to 60% of the security, and (iyaaiable
portion applicable to the remaining 40% of the si#guwhich is linked to consolidated net income tbé
previous year, subject to the cap specified inidkee agreement. In all, depending on the levebakolidated
net income, the interest rate ranges from a minimtith5% to a maximum of 6.75% if the TMOE ratdé&ow
5% or TMOE + 175bps if the TMOE rate is above 58tedest for 2012 amounted to €65.80 per securéig p
in two installments (€32.25 and €33.55).

These securities are not redeemable and the infigson them is reported under “Borrowing costs”.
A certain number of securities have been boughtk baeer the years. At December 31, 2012,

606,883 participating securities issued in 1983avertstanding, for a total face value of €92.5iomll together
with 77,516 participating securities issued in 1984 a total face value of €77.5 million.

56



Group Saint-Gobain Consolidated Financial Statesnent

Financing programs

Compagnie de Saint-Gobain has a number of mediuhicgry-term financing programs (Medium Term Notes)
and short-term financing programs (Commercial PapeBillets de Trésorerie

At December 31, 2012, issuance under these prograsss follows:

Programg Currency Maturities Authorized| Outstanding issugs Outstanding issugs
program at at December 31|, at Dec. 31, 2011
December 31, 201pR 2012
(in millions of currency
units)
Medium Term Note EUR 1 to 30 year: 12 000 9,246 7,951
US Commercial Paper UsD Up to 12 month 1,000 * 0 0
Euro Commercial Paper UsD Up to 12 month 1,000 * 0 0
Billets de Trésorerig EUR Up to 12 month 3,000 691 76

Equivalent to €758 million based on the exchange aaDecember 31, 2012.

In accordance with market practic@llets de TrésorerieEuro Commercial Paper and US Commercial Paper
are generally issued with maturities of one torsonths. They are treated as variable-rate debfusecthey are

rolled over at frequent intervals.

Syndicated lines of credit

Compagnie de Saint-Gobain has various confirmedisgted lines of credit that are intended to prevadsecure
source of financing for the Group (including asitididal backing for its US Commercial Paper, Eur@a@nercial

Paper andillets de Trésoreri@rograms). They include:

» A €3 billion syndicated line of credit expiring December 2015. The facility was obtained in Decambe
2010 and its amount was reduced to €2.5 billioDecember 2012. It is not subject to any hard covisna

* A second €1.5 billion syndicated line of credit iexpy in December 2017. When the facility was Sgtin
December 2012, the €1 billion facility expiring dune 2013 was canceled and the facility expiring in
December 2015 was reduced from €3 billion to €2l®b as explained above. Based on Saint-Gobain’s
current credit rating for long-term debt issues, fédicility is not subject to any hard covenants.

Neither of these confirmed lines of credit was dralewn at December 31, 2012.

Bank overdrafts and other short-term bank borrowings

This item includes bank overdrafts, local shortrdsank borrowings taken out by subsidiaries, arousd
interest on short-term debt.

Receivables securitization programs

The Group has set up a securitization program tirais US subsidiary, Saint-Gobain Receivables
Corporation.
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The program, which can be rolled over annually, anted to €89 million at December 31, 2012 (Decen3ier
2011: €177 million).

The difference between the face value of the setitiwvables and the sale proceeds is treated amacial
expense, and amounted to €2.5 million in 2012 (26215 million).

A second program in the United Kingdom, which antednto €180 million at December 31, 2011, was
discontinued on March 6, 2012. Financial expensgeuithe program came to €0.4 million in 2012 (2011:
€1.6 million).

Collateral

At December 31, 2012, €62 million of Group debt wasured by various non-current assets (real eatate
securities).
NOTE 21 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives

The following table presents a breakdown of thegipial derivatives used by the Group:

Fair value a Nominal value broken down by maturity
Fair value at December 31, 2012 Dec. 31, 2011 at December 31, 2012
Derivatives  Derivatives Total Within 1 year 1to5years Beyond £ Total
recorded it recorded il years
(in EUR millions) assets liabilities

Fair value hedges 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cash flow hedges
Forward foreign exchange contracts 2 (1) 1 (4) 163 34 0 197
Currency options 0 0
Currency swaps 0 0
Interest rate swaps 0 (10) 95 95
Cross-Currency Swaps (22) (22) 306 306
Energy and commodity swaps (2) (2) (8) 60 60
Cash flow hedges - total 2 (25) (23) (22) 223 34 401 658
Derivatives not qualifying for hedge accounting
Interest rate swaps 0 1 155 155
Currency swaps 3 (2) 1 (4) 1,332 1,332
Energy and commodity swaps 0 0 0
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1 1 1 78 78
Currency options 4 4 130 130
Derivatives not qualifying for hedge accounting -atal 8 (2) 6 (2) 1,695 0 0 1,695
TOTAL 10 (27) (17) (24) 1,918 34 401 2,353
o/w derivatives used to hed
net debt 3 (24) (21) (12) 0

= Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to converiop@d fixed (variable) rate bank debt and bondtdelvariable
(fixed) rates.

= Cross-currency swaps

The Group uses cross-currency swaps to conveigfocarrency debt into euro debt.
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= Currency swaps

The Group uses currency swaps for day-to-day castagement purposes and, in some cases, to peemiséhof
euro-denominated funds to finance foreign currerssets.

= Forward foreign exchange contracts and currencyap

Forward foreign exchange contracts and currencyormptare used to hedge foreign currency transagtion
particularly commercial transactions (purchasessates) and investments.

= Energy and commodity swaps

Energy and commodity swaps are used to hedge gkefrichanges in the price of certain purchased imséhe
subsidiaries’ operating activities, particularlyeagy (fuel oil, natural gas and electricity) pursbs

Impact on equity of financial instruments qualifying for hedge accounting

At December 31, 2012, the cash flow hedging researded in equity in accordance with IFRS had hitde
balance of €15 million, mainly breaking down addols:

* €14 million corresponding to the interest rate comgnt of cross-currency swaps designated as cash fl
hedges that are used to convert a bond issueunts;e

« €1 million corresponding to the remeasurementiatvidue of other cash flow hedges to be reclaessifo
income when the hedged items affect income.

The ineffective portion of gains and losses on dlsh hedges is not material.

Impact on income of financial instruments not qualfying for hedge accounting

The fair value of derivatives classified as finahcssets and liabilities at fair value throughfipror loss
represented a €6 million profit at December 31 22@ecember 31, 2011: €2 million loss).

Embedded derivatives

Saint-Gobain regularly analyzes its contracts ideorto separately identify financial instrumentassified as
embedded derivatives under IFRS.

At December 31, 2012, no embedded derivatives deéolee material at Group level were identified.

Group debt structure

The weighted average interest rate on total deelui=RS, after hedging (using currency swaps,secasrent
swaps and interest rate swaps) was 4.7% at Dec&hp2012 (December 31, 2011: 4.8%).
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The average internal rates of return for the mammonents of long-term debt before hedging wer®lksvs
in 2012 and 2011:

Internal rate of return on long-term debt December December
(in %) 31, 2012 31, 2011

Bonds and Medium Term Notes 5117 5.19
Perpetual bonds and participating securities 1.30 4.85

The table below presents the breakdown by currendyby interest rate (fixed or variable) of the @r's gross
debt at December 31, 2012, after giving effechterest rate swaps, cross-currency swaps and curseraps.

Gross debt denominated in foreign currencies After hedging
Variable Fixed Total
(in EUR millions) rate rate
EUR 1,247 9,481 10,728
GBP (241) 721 480
usb 193 5 198
NOK, SEK, DKK 295 2 297
Other currencies 490 189 679
TOTAL 1,984 10,398 12,382
16% 84% 100%
Fair value of related derivatives 21
Accrued interest 266
TOTAL GROSS DEBT 12,669

Interest rate repricing schedule for debt

The table below shows the interest rate reprioihgdule at December 31, 2012 for gross debt agthgihg:

Withinl 1to5years BeyondE Total
(in EUR millions) year years
Gross debt 3,504 4,875 4,290 12,669
Impact of interest rate swaps (95) 0 95 0

GROSS DEBT AFTER HEDGING 3,409 4,875 4,385 12,669
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NOTE 22 - FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are classifietbdews in accordance with IFRS 7:

December 31, 2011
(in EUR millions)

Financial instruments at fair value

Total financial
instruments

Other financial instruments

Total financial

Financial instrument at fair value hierarchy

Total financial

instruments under IFRS 7 instruments
Balance sheet headings : Notes Financia Derivatives Assets an  measured at " available-for- Loansan  Liabiliies ai Level 1: quote Level 2: internz Level 3: interne  Mmeasured at
classes of instrument instrument.  designated ¢ liabilities ~ fair value sale financia receivables amortized cost prices and cash ~ model using model using no  fair value
through profit o hedges measured at fa asset: observabl observabl
loss value (fair value factors factors
option)
Trade and other accounts
receivable (10) 0 6,749 6,749 0
Loans and deposits [C)) 0 266 266 0
Available for sale and other
securities ®) 0 29 29 0
Derivatives recorded in assets  (20)(21) 6 6 6 6 6
Cash and cash equivalents (20) 2,949 2,949 2,949 2,949 2,949
Total assets 6 0 2,949 2,955 29 7,015 0 9,999 2,949 6 0 2,955
Trade and other accounts
payable (18) 0 (9,580) (9,580) 0
Long and short-term debt (20) (156) (156) (10,876) (11,032) (156) (156)
Derivatives recorded in
liabilities (20)(21) ®) (10) (18) (18) (18) (18)
Total liabilities ® (10) (156) (174) 0 0 (20,456) (20,630) 0 (174) 0 (174)
Total [©) (10) 2,793 2,781 29 7,015 (20,456) (10,631) 2,949 (168) 0 2,781
December 31, 2012 Financial instruments at fair value Total financial Other financial instruments Total financial Financial instrument at fair value hierarchy Total financial
(in EUR millions) instruments instruments under IFRS 7 instruments
Balance sheet headings : Notes Financia Derivatives Assets an Measured at — Available-for- Loansan _ Liabilities al Level 1: quote' Level 2: internz Level 3: internz  Mmeasured at
classes of instrument instrument:  designated ¢ liabilities ~ fair value sale financia  receivables amortized cost prices and cash  model usine model using no ~ fair value
through profit o hedges measured at fa asset observabl observabl
loss value (fair valut factors factors
option)
Trade and other accounts
receivable (10) 0 6,442 6,442 0
Loans and deposits (8) 0 261 261 0
Available for sale and other
securities (8) 0 41 41 o)
Derivatives recorded in assets  (20)(21) 3 3 3 3 3
Cash and cash equivalents (20) 4,179 4,179 4,179 4,179 4,179
Total assets 3 0 4,179 4,182 41 6,703 0 10,926 4,179 3 0 4,182
Trade and other accounts
payable (18) 0 (9,551) (9,551) 0
Long and short-term debt (20) (155) (155) (12,493) (12,648) (155) (155)
Derivatives recorded in
liabilities (20)(21) () (22) (24) (24) (24) (24)
Total liabilities [©) (22) (155) (179) 0 0 (22,044) (22,223) 0 (179) 0 (179)
Total 1 (22) 4,024 4,003 41 6,703 (22,044) (11,297) 4,179 (176) 0 0031,
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NOTE 23 — BUSINESS INCOME BY EXPENSE TYPE

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011

Net sales 43,198 42,116

Personnel costs

Salaries and payroll taxes (8,431) (7,955)

Share-based paymefits (14) (39)

Pension® (5) (76)
Depreciation and amortization (1,550) (1,511)
Othef® (30,317) (29,094)
Operating income 2,881 3,441
Other business incorffe 116 69
Negative goodwill recognized in income 0 0
Other business income 116 69
Restructuring cosfd (285) (167)
Provisions and expenses relating to claims arghtior” (152) (149)
Impairment of assets and other business exp@hses (505) (469)
Other (71) (79)
Other business expense (1,013) (864)
Business income 1,984 2,646

(a) Details of share-based payments are provided ie$\b2, 13 and 14.
(b) Changes in pension costs are presented in NotBrbwisions for pensions and other employee befiefits

(c) This item corresponds to Building Distribution Seatost of sales, supplier discounts and selliqgeases,
and to transport costs, raw materials costs, amek groduction costs for the other Sectors. Teisiialso
includes net foreign exchange gains and lossesgepting a net gain of €13 million in 2012 (20a&t
loss of €1 million). In 2012, research and develepttosts recorded under operating expenses andounte
to €451 million (2011: €417 million).

(d) This item includes capital gains on disposals opprty, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

(e) Restructuring costs in 2012 mainly consisted oflegg®e termination benefits in an amount of €180iomil
(2011: €95 million).

(f) In the periods presented, provisions and expemdaiing to claims and litigation corresponded fog tost
part to asbestos-related litigation and the prowisior the competition litigation discussed in Note
17 and 28.

(9) Impairment losses on assets in 2012 included €#ibombn goodwill (2011: €309 million), €371 millio
on property, plant and equipment and intangibleetas2011: €72 million). In addition, €2 million in
impairment losses on financial assets and curgsdta were reversed (2011: recognition of a €2amill
impairment loss).
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The caption “Other” includes capital losses on @askgposals and scrapping for €56 million (2011:
€68 million) and acquisition costs incurred in ceation with business combinations for €13 million
(€2011: 18 million).

NOTE 24 — NET FINANCIAL EXPENSE

Breakdown of other financial income and expense

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011
Interest cost - pension and other post-employmenéfit

obligations (446) (445)
Expected return on plan assets 403 415

Interest cost - pension and other post-employment

benefit obligations - net (43) (30)
Other financial expense (121) (112)
Other financial income 27 19

Other financial income and expense (137) (122)

Recognition of financial instruments
Net financial expense amounted to €724 million0A2(2011: €638 million). Of this amount, €484 raitl (2011.:
€473 million) relates to instruments carried at dgiped cost by Compagnie de Saint-Gobain and Szatain

Nederland. Instruments measured at fair value bgethwo entities resulted in a positive impact 2fnlillion
(2011: €3 million positive impact).

NOTE 25 — EBITDA — RECURRING NET INCOME — CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS

EBITDA amounted to €4,431 million in 2012 (2011;%=R million), calculated as follows:

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011

Operating income 2,881 3,441
Depreciation and amortizati 1,550 1,511
EBITDA 4,431 4,952

Recurring net income totaled €1,126 million in 2Q2®11: €1,736 million). Based on the weighted ager
number of shares outstanding at December 31 (52889 shares in 2012, 526,274,931 shares in 2(8d)iring
earnings per share amounted to €2.14 in 2012 a0 £82011.
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The difference between net income and recurring imedme (attributable to equity holders of the pgre
corresponds to the following items:

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011
Net income attributable to equity holders of the paent 766 1,284
Less:
Gains on disposals of assets 60 1
Impairment of assets and acquisition costs incurr@dnnexion with business
combinations (449) (401)
Provision for competition litigation and other noecurring provision charges (96) (123)
Impact of minority interests 2 (2)
Tax impact 123 72
Recurring net income attributable to equity holdersof the parent 1,126 1,736

Cash flow from operations for 2012 amounted to €2 fhillion (2011: €3,421 million). Excluding tax aapital
gains and non-recurring provision charges, caslv flom operations came to €2,668 million in 201D1(2
€3,349 million). These amounts are calculated davist

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011
Net income attributable to equity holders of the paent 766 1,284
Minority interests in net income 30 76
Share in net income of associates, net of divideadsive: (6) (1)
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of assets 1,988 1,892
Gains and losses on disposals of assets (60) (2)
Non-recurring charges to provisions 96 123

Unrealized gains and losses arising from changé&sriralue and
share-based payments (23) 48
Cash flow from operations 2,791 3,421

Tax on capital gains and losses and non-recurtiagges
to provisions (123) (72)

Cash flow from operations before tax on capital gais and losses
and non-recurring charges to provisions 2,668 3,349
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NOTE 26 — EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per share is showrvbelo

Net income Number of Earnings per

attributable to shares share

equity holders of (in EUR)

(in EUR millions) the parent

2012

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 766 526,399,944 1.46

Weighted average number of shares assuming fuliaii 766 528,692,847 1.45
2011

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 1,284 526,274,931 2.44

Weighted average number of shares assuming fuliaii 1,284 530,333,380 2.42

The weighted average number of shares outstanslicgigulated by deducting treasury stock (4,691fbges at
December 31, 2012) from the average number of sloartstanding during the year.

The weighted average number of shares assumindilfitibn is calculated based on the weighted ayeeraumber
of shares outstanding, assuming conversion ofilativié instruments. The Group’s dilutive instruntegonsist of

stock-options and performance share grants comedsmp to a weighted average of 599,942 shares and
1,692,961 shares respectively in 2012.

NOTE 27 — COMMITMENTS

Commitments related to shares in subsidiaries andsgociates

Puts granted to minority shareholders are carrigtié balance sheet under investment-relateditiebil They are
reviewed on a periodic basis and any subsequengekan their fair value are recognized by adjgstiquity.

Financing-related commitments

The Group's commitments related to debt and fimhitgtruments are discussed in Notes 20 and 2iecévely.

Commitments related to operating activities
= Obligations under finance leases

Non-current assets acquired under finance leaseseapgnized as an asset and a liability in thesamtated
balance sheet.
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At December 31, 2012, €28 million of future minimiegase payments due under finance leases condantkdnd
buildings. Total assets under finance leases rémeginn consolidated assets amounted to €109 millib

December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2011: €119 million)

December 31, December 31,

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011
Future minimum lease payments
Due within 1 year 21 25
Due in 1to 5 years 43 46
Due beyond 5 years 10 10
Total 74 81
Less finance charge 9) 9)
Present value of future minimum lease payments 65 72

= Obligations under operating leases

The Group leases equipment, vehicles and officaufaaturing and warehouse space under various anaretable
operating leases. Lease terms generally rangedrento nine years. The commitment correspondingtéb future
minimum payments over the lease term is discounfidie leases contain rollover options for varyimgiqds of
time and some include clauses covering the payofaeil estate taxes and insurance. In most camseggement

expects that these leases will be rolled overpaced by other leases in the normal course ohbssi

Rental expense was €861 million in 2012, includéf$b9 million for land and buildings, and revenuenir

subleases was €19 million. Net rental expense @42 giillion.

Future minimum payments due under non-cancelal#eating leases are as follows:

Total 2012 Payments due Total 2011
Within 1 year Inl1to5 Beyond &
(in EUR millions) years years
Operating leases
Rental expense 3,022 752 1,560 710 3,028
Subletting revenue (56) (15) (29) (12) (59)
Total 2,966 737 1,531 698 2,969
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= Non-cancelable purchase commitments

Non-cancelable purchase commitments include comemtsto purchase raw materials and services amd fir
orders for property, plant and equipment.

Total 2012 Payments due Total 2011
Within 1 year Inl1to5 Beyond &
(in EUR millions) years years
Non-cancelable purchase commitments
Non-current assets 128 118 10 0 230
Raw materials and energy 1,096 339 635 122 845
Services 218 75 128 15 181
Investments and other 57 13 44 0 347
Total 1,499 545 817 137 1,603

The €104 million decrease in non-cancelable puelcasnmitments in 2012 was mainly due to the corggiet
of the Brossette acquisition.

Data for 2011 have been reclassified to take intmant the reallocation of energy contracts.

= Guarantee commitments

In some cases, the Group grants seller's warratotidg®e buyers of divested businesses. A provisaset aside
whenever a risk is identified and the related castbe estimated reliably.

The Group also receives guarantees, amounting 10 €iillion at December 31, 2012 (December 31, 2011:
€101 million).

=  Commercial commitments

Total 2012 Payments due Total 2011
Within 1 year Inl1to5 Beyond &
(in EUR millions) years years
Commercial commitments
Security for borrowings 45 10 19 16 35
Other commitments given 163 82 23 58 216
Total 208 92 42 74 251

At December 31, 2012, pledged assets amountedd®réiflion (December 31, 2011: €301 million). Theay-on-
year increase mainly concerned fixed assets ibtiited Kingdom.

Guarantees given to the Group in respect of relslgigamounted to €136 million at December 31, Z0E2ember
31, 2011: €109 million).

=  Other commitments

Greenhouse gas emissions allowances granted topGrompanies under the 2008-2012 plan represent
approximately 6.9 million metric tons of G@missions per year. The 2012 and 2011 allowaneeshmve the
greenhouse gas emissions for those years and,queargly, no provision has been recorded in thipeessin

the Group accounts.

67



Group Saint-Gobain Consolidated Financial Statement

NOTE 28 — LITIGATION
Asbestos-related litigation in France
* ‘“Inexcusable fault” proceedings

In France, further individual lawsuits were filed2011 by former employees (or persons claimingugh them)
of Everite and Saint-Gobain PAM (“the employers™hich in the past had carried out fiber-cementraiens
— for asbestos-related occupational diseases, tivthaim of obtaining supplementary compensatiorr awel
above the amounts paid by the French Social Sgcauithorities in this respect. A total of 759 suatsuits
have been issued against the two companies si® 19

At December 31, 2012, 684 of these 759 lawsuitsbessh completed in terms of both liability and quam In
all of these cases, the employers were held liabléne grounds of “inexcusable fault”.

Compensation paid by Everite and Saint-Gobain PAMeéttlement of these lawsuits totaled approximatel
€1.3 million.

Concerning the 75 lawsuits outstanding againstitevand Saint-Gobain PAM at December 31, 2012 ntbdts
of nine have been decided but the compensationdsweve not yet been made, pending issue of meadjgaits
or Appeal Court rulings. A further 33 of these &Bv$uits have been completed in terms of both Itgbéind
guantum, but liability for the payment of comper@ahas not yet been assigned.

Out of the 33 remaining lawsuits, at December 8122the procedures relating to the merits of 2@sagere at
different stages, with three in the process of ¢pénvestigated by the French Social Security aitiesrand
23 pending before the Social Security courts. Tihal fseven suits have been withdrawn by the plsnbr

struck out. The plaintiffs can ask for them to beactivated at any time within a 2-year period.

In addition, as of December 31, 2012, 183 suitedam inexcusable fault had been filed by currerfoomer
employees of 12 other French companies in the Gfexguding Saint-Gobain Desjonquéres and Sainta3ob
Vetrotex, which have been sold), in particular inimmy circumstances where equipment containing stslsehad
been used to protect against heat from furnaces.

At that date, 123 lawsuits had been completedlinf3hese cases, the employer was held liablenéorcusable
fault. Compensation paid by the companies totgguicximately €0.6 million.

For the 60 suits outstanding at December 31, 2&®ments were being prepared by the French Seelrity
authorities in six cases, 35 were being invest@jatencluding 24 pending before the Social Securityrts, ten
before the Courts of Appeal and one before the Cafu€assation — and nine had been completed imstexf
liability but not in terms of quantum or liabilifypr paying the compensation, of which eight pendiefpre the
Courts of Appeal and one before the Court of Camsalhe final ten suits have been withdrawn byglantiffs
or struck out. The plaintiffs can ask for them orb-activated at any time within a 2-year period.
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¢ Anxiety claims

Four of the Group’s French subsidiaries that opepathave operated facilities in France classifiggresenting
an asbestos hazard are the subject of damages dtatrare different from those described above.

“Facilities classified as presenting an asbestaaitfl are defined as manufacturing facilities thate been
closed or are still operating which previously mi@ctured materials containing asbestos or usedstxbe
protection and insulation equipment and are indude the official list of facilities whose curreot former
employees are entitled to the asbestos workerdibh€AATA).

At December 31, 2012 a total of 145 suits had beeught by current or former employees of faciitie
classified as presenting an asbestos hazard, ogiocimpensation for various damages suffered asdt rof
their exposure to asbestos. None of these plantiéfire suffering from an asbestos-related diserdes@me of
them were not receiving the ACAATA benefit. Of thelsA5 suits, 49 have been terminated. Three (fsittad
their claims dismissed. For the 46 others, who wecegnized as having been exposed to an asbéstpsmly
the damage caused by anxiety was accepted, les&dipgyment of total compensation of €629,500. Gf th
remaining 96 suits, 30 are pending before the ceampe&ourts of Appeal — including two where the elfgmts
are the plaintiffs and 28 where the appellantstl@ecompanies concerned — and 66 before the compgater
tribunals.

Asbestos-related litigation in the United States

In the United States, several companies that orereufactured products containing asbestos suchbestas-
cement pipes, roofing products, specialized ingaadr gaskets, are facing legal action from pessather than
their employees or former employees. These claongdmpensatory — and in many cases punitive — dasma
are based on alleged exposure to the productsuglthin many instances the claimants cannot dematasiny
specific exposure to one or more products, or gegific illness or physical disability. The vastjoréty of these
claims are made simultaneously against many otlwr-Group entities which have been manufacturers,
distributors, installers or users of products ciihg asbestos.

« Developments in 2012

About 4,000 new claims were filed against Certagdrén 2012, compared to about 4,000 in 2011, 5jA00
2010, 4,000 in 2009, and 5,000 in 2008. Over tst five years the number of new claims has remndaine
relatively stable.

Almost all of the claims against CertainTeed arfiesk out of court or dismissed. Approximately 90&f the
pending claims were resolved in 2012, compared,®@®in 2011, 13,000 in 2010, and 8,000 in 2009 iand
2008. In addition, approximately 4,000 claims (nhain Texas) were designated as inactive as théyndt meet
required minimum medical impairment criteria andreven the court’s “inactive docket.” Taking intocacnt
the 52,000 outstanding claims at the end of 20Hlthe new claims having arisen during the yeamel as
claims resolved or designated as inactive, som@003;laims were outstanding at December 31, 28 farge
number of these pending claims were filed more tfieg years ago by individuals without any sigréiid
asbestos-related impairment, and it is likely thahy of these claims ultimately will be dismissed.

e Impact on the Group’s accounts

The Group recorded a €90 million charge in 201@awer future developments in relation to claimsis@mount

is identical to the amount recorded in 2011, lowem the €97 million recorded in 2010, and highemnt the
€75 million recorded in 2009 and 2008. At DecemBg&r 2012, the Group reserve for asbestos-relatdths!
against CertainTeed in the United States amou@4fi million ($550 million), compared with €389 figh
($504 million) at December 31, 2011, €375 millig¥501 million) at December 31, 2010, €347 million,
($500 million) at December 31, 2009, and €361 mill{$502 million) at December 31, 2008.
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e Cash flow impact

Compensation paid in respect of these claims ap@ieidainTeed, including claims settled prior td2@®ut only
paid out in 2012, and those fully resolved and paigl012, and compensation paid (net of insuraimcP12 by
other Group businesses in connection with asbestated litigation, amounted to €52 million ($67llian),

compared to €59 million ($82 million) in 2011, €@&8llion ($103 million) in 2010, €55 million ($77 iiibn) in

2009, and €48 million ($71 million) in 2008.

*kk

In Brazil, former Group employees suffering frombestos-related occupational illness are offeretieeit
exclusively financial compensation or lifetime nmealiassistance combined with financial compensatimly a
small number of asbestos-related lawsuits brouglibtmer employees (or persons claiming througimiheere
outstanding at December 31, 2012, and they do wnoemtly represent a material risk for the companie
concerned.

*kk

Ruling by the European Commission following the inestigation into the automotive glass industries

In the November 12, 2008 decision concerning itgestigation into automotive glass manufacturerg th
European Commission held that actions carried etwéen 1998 and 2003 by Saint-Gobain Glass Fr&aint-
Gobain Sekurit France and Saint-Gobain Sekurit ind GmbhH had violated Article 81 of the Treaty
Rome and fined them €896 million. Compagnie de tSawbain was held jointly and severally liable tbe
payment of this amount.

The companies concerned believe the fine is excessid disproportionate, and have appealed thesidaci
before the General Court of the European Union.

The European Commission has granted them a stagyofient until the appeal has been heard, in exehfama
bond covering the €896 million fine and the relataerest, calculated at the rate of 5.25% fromded, 2009.
The necessary steps were taken to set up thisveitinid the required timeframe.

The appeal was heard by the General Court of tepean Union in Luxembourg on December 11, 2012 and
the Court’s ruling is due within six to 12 months.

The provision set aside to cover the fine, the iaterest, the cost of the above bond and theeeligal costs
amounted to €1,098 million at December 31, 2012.
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NOTE 29 — RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances and transactions with associates

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011
Assets
Financial receivables 1 1
Inventories 0 0
Short-term receivables 3 10
Cash and cash equivalents 0 0
Provisions for impairment in value 0
Liabilities
Short-term debt 2 3
Cash advances 0 0
Expenses
Purchases 5 11
Income
Sales 35 32

Revenue from transactions with proportionately conslidated companies

Transactions with proportionately consolidated canigs are treated as transactions with externaépand the
Group's share of revenue arising from such traiosects not eliminated on consolidation. In 201&se revenues

amounted to €23 million (2011: €16 million).

Transactions with key shareholders

Some Group subsidiaries, particularly in the BuaipDistribution Sector, carry out transactions veitifbsidiaries of
the Wendel group. All of these transactions araroarm'’s length basis.

NOTE 30 — JOINT VENTURES

The amounts recorded in the balance sheet and enabatement corresponding to the Group's intere#isi

proportionately consolidated companies are asvistio

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011
Assets

Non-current asse 277 380

Current asse 134 173
Liabilities

Non-current liabilitie 1 51

Current liabilitie: 90 107
Expenses

Operating expens 258 273
Income

Sale! 293 320
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NOTE 31 - MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

Direct and indirect compensation and benefits paichembers of the Board of Directors and the Geosghior
management were as follows in 2012:

(in EUR millions) 2012 2011
Attendance fees 0.8 0.8

Direct and indirect compensation (gross):

Fixed portion 8.0 7.9
Variable portion 4.6 4.7
Estimated compensation cost - pensions and othglogee benefits (IAS 19) 2.2 2.0
Expense relating to stock options* 1.3 1.4
Termination benefits 0.0 1.3
Total 16.9 18.1

*Including the impact of adjusting costs recordegiior years due to performance targets being menfly met.

Employers' social security contributions relatingite above compensation represented an estima@dlion.
Pension obligations for the Group's directors argarate officers totaled €41.8 million.

NOTE 32 — EMPLOYEES

(Average number of employees) 2012 2011
Fully consolidated companies
Managers 26,719 25,452
Administrative employees 80,662 76,904
Other employees 85,448 85,999
Total 192,829 188,355

Proportionately consolidated companies (*)

Managers 118 119
Administrative employees 531 657
Other employees 969 910
Sub-total 1,618 1,686
Total 194,447 190,041

* Proportion of headcount allocated to the Group.

At December 31, 2012, the total number of Group leyges — including in proportionately consolidated
companies —was 191,113 (December 31, 2011: 192,933

72



Group Saint-Gobain Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 33 — SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information by Sector and Activity

Segment information is presented as follows:

* Innovative Materials (IM) Sector

> Flat glass
> High-Performance Materials (HPM)
» Construction Products (CP) Sector
> Interior Solutions: Insulation and Gypsum
> Exterior Solutions: Industrial Mortars, Pipe anddfior Fittings

» Packaging Sector

Building Distribution Sector

Management uses several different internal indisatm measure operational performance and to nedairce
allocation decisions. These indicators are baseti@data used to prepare the consolidated finksteigements
and meet financial reporting requirements. Intragr@‘internal”) sales are generally carried outtbe same
terms as sales to external customers and are ali@dirin consolidation. The accounting policies usetlthe
same as those applied for consolidated financiadrteng purposes, as described in Note 1. The colt@ther”

corresponds solely to holding companies and certamporate support functions (tax, cash management,

purchasing, etc.)

*“Other” corresponds to a) the elimination of &group transactions for internal sales and b) hgldompany transactions for the other captions.

** Segment assets and liabilities include net prigp@lant and equipment, working capital, goodaiild net other intangible assets, after deducefeyed

taxes on brands and land.
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2012 INNOVATIVE MATERIALS CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS Bg:;?r?ue PACKAGING Othef Total
BUTION
High Intra- ] ) Intra-
Flat Segment Interior  Exterior ~ Segment
Glass Ferformance “pp it Toll | ooions Solutions  Elimi- O
(in EUR millions) Materials nations nations
External sales 5,079 4,264 9,343 5,260 5,558 10/818 19,229 3,792 16 43,194
Internal sales 51 112 (21) 142 587 357 (53) 891 4 0 (1)037)
Net sale 5,130 4,376 (21) 9,485 5,847 5,915 (53) 11,709 19,p33 3/7921,021) 43,199
Operating income/(los 104 622 726| 484 490 974 761 414 6 2,881
Business income/(loss) (274) 535 261| 408 386 794 613 387 1) 1,984
Share in net income/(loss) of associateq 0 1 1 7 0 7 1 2 1 14
Depreciation and amortization 333 167 500 321 186 507 274 243 D6 1,450
Impairment of assets 301 25 326 44 9 5 5! 6 D 438
Capital expenditut 461 236 697| 343 198 541 243 282 P8 1,791
Cash flow from operations 730 641 555 506 359 2,791
EBITDA 437 789 1,226 805 676 1,481 1,085 657 32 4,431
Goodwill, ne 1,597 5,844 3,434 60 D 10,936
Non-amortizable brands 0 856 1,950 0 0 2,80
Total segment assets and liabilities 7,577 12,388 8,49 1,921 163 30,544
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2011 INNOVATIVE MATERIALS CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS Bg:;'?:glf; PACKAGING Other Total
BUTION
High Intra- ) . Intra-
Flat Segment Interior  Exterior  Segment
Glass Performance Elimi- Total Solutions Solutions  Elimi- Total
(in EUR millions) Materials ions nations
External sales 5,419 4,047 9,466 4,933 5,595 10/528 18,487 3,628 7 42,114
Internal sales 41 116 (27) 130 578 372 (52) 898 5 (1,033) 0
Net sale 5,460 4,163 (27) 9,596 5,511 5,967 (52) 11,426 18,492 3/6281,026) 42,114
Operating income/(los 478 652 1,134 450 636 1,086 768 4h8 9 3,441
Business income/(loss) 340 588 928 211 541 752 598 4387 (69) 2,646
Share in net income/(loss) of associateq 1 1 6 6 1 8
Depreciation and amortizati 315 160 475 319 185 504 213 237 p2 1911
Impairment of asse 35 29 64 214 17 231 85 B 343
Capital expenditure 684 198 882 332 227 5509 219 268 P6 1,954
Cash flow from operations 1,102 888 566 512 353 3,421L
EBITDA 793 812 1,605 769 821 1,590 1,041 685 31 4,952
Goodwill, ne 1,551 5,828 3,408 254 11,041
Non-amortizable brani 0 847 1,931 2,774
Total segment assets and liabilities 7,786 12,637 8,311 2,255 196  31,1B5

* “Other” corresponds to a) the elimination of agroup transactions for internal sales and b) hgldompany transactions for the other captions.
** Segment assets and liabilities include net priyp@lant and equipment, working capital, goodaiild net other intangible assets, after deductfeye:d
taxes on brands and land.

Information by geographic area

Other Western North Emerging
France European . countries and Internal sales TOTAL
countries America Asia
(in EUR millions)
2012
Net sales 12,044 18,014 6,179 8,709 (1,748) 43,198
Total segment assets and liabili 6,993 12,453 4,419 6,679 30,544
Capital expenditure 311 438 314 728 1,791
Other Western North Emerging
France European . countries and Internal sales TOTAL
countries America Asia
(in EUR millions)
2011
Net sales 11,802 18,049 5,505 8,643 (1,883) 42,116
Total segment assets and liabili 7,027 12,726 4,713 6,719 31,185
Capital expenditure 327 548 295 784 1,954
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NOTE 34 — PRINCIPAL FULLY CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES

The table below shows the Group’s principal comtstéd companies, typically those with annual safesver

€100 million.

INNOVATIVE MATERIALS SECTOR

FLAT GLASS

Saint-Gobain Glass France
Saint-Gobain Sekurit France
Saint-Gobain Glass Logistics

Saint-Gobain Sekurit Deutschland GmbH & CO Kg

Saint-Gobain Glass Deutschland GmbH
Saint-Gobain Deutsche Glas GmbH
Saint-Gobain Glass Benelux
Saint-Gobain Sekurit Benelux SA
Saint-Gobain Autover Distribution SA
Cebrace Cristal Plano Lt

Saint-Gobain Do Brasil Ltda

Hankuk Glass Industries Inc.

Hankuk Sekurit Limited

Saint-Gobain Cristaleria S.L
Saint-Gobain Glass India Ltd
Saint-Gobain Glass ltalia S.p.a
Saint-Gobain Sekurit Italia

Saint-Gobain Glass Mexico

Koninklijke Saint-Gobain Glass Nederland
Saint-Gobain Glass Polska Sp Zoo
Saint-Gobain Sekurit Hanglas Polska Sp Zoo
Glassolutions Saint-Gobain Ltd (Solaglas)
Saint-Gobain Glass UK Limited

HIGH PERFORMANCE MATERIALS

Saint-Gobain Abrasifs

Société Européenne des Produits Réfractaires
Saint-Gobain Abrasives GmbH

Saint-Gobain Do Brasil Ltda

Saint-Gobain Abrasives Canada, Inc.
Saint-Gobain Abrasives, Inc.

Saint-Gobain Ceramics & Plastics, Inc.
Saint-Gobain Performance Plastics Corporation
Saint-Gobain Solar Gard, LLC

Saint-Gobain Abrasivi S.p.a

SEPR ltalia S.p.a

Saint-Gobain Abrasives BV

Saint-Gobain Abrasives Ltd

Saint-Gobain Adfors CZ S.R.O.

France
France
France
Gerynan
Germany
Germany
Belgium
Belgium
Belgium

Brazil

Brazil
South Korea
South Korea
Spain
India
Italy
Italy
Mexico
Netherlands
Poland
Poland
Unitedd¢iom
United Kingdom

France
France
Germany
Brazil
Canada
United States
United States
Urtiteedies
United States
ltaly

Italy

Netherlands
United Kingdom
Czech Republic

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.97%
99.99%
99.99%
50.00%
100.00%
81.07%
90.43%
99.83%
98.71%
100.00%
100.00%
99.83%
100.00%
99.99%
6897%.
99.99%
99.99%

99.97%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
99.97%
100.00%
100.00%
99.99%
100.00%
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CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS SECTOR

INTERIOR SOLUTIONS
Placoplatre SA
Saint-Gobain Isover
Saint-Gobain Rigips GmbH
Saint-Gobain Isover G+H AG

Saint-Gobain Construction Products Belgium
Saint-Gobain Construction Products South Africa Ltd

Certain Teed Gypsum Canada, Inc.
Saint-Gobain Placo Iberica
CertainTeed Corporation

Certain Teed Gypsum & Ceillings USA, Inc.

Gypsum Industries Ltd
Saint-Gobain PPC ltalia S.p.a
Mag-Isover K.K.

BPB United Kingdom Ltd
BPB Plc

Saint-Gobain Construction Product Russia Insulation

Saint-Gobain Isover AB
Saint-Gobain Ecophon AB
Thai Gypsum Products PLC
Izocam Ticaret VE Sanayi A.S.

EXTERIOR SOLUTIONS
Saint-Gobain Weber
Saint-Gobain PAM
Saint-Gobain Weber GmbH

Saint-Gobain PAM Deutschland GmbH

Saint-Gobain Do Brasil Ltda
Saint-Gobain Canalizagao Ltda
Saint-Gobain (Xuzhou) Pipe Co., Ltd
Saint-Gobain Pipelines Co., Ltd
Saint-Gobain Weber Cemarksa SA
Saint-Gobain PAM Esjia SA
CertainTeed Corporation
Saint-Gobain PAM ltalia S.p.a
Saint-Gobain PAM UK Ltd
Saint-Gobain Byggprodukter AB
Saint-Gobain Weber AG

France
France
Germany
Germany
Belgium
South Africa
Canada
Spain
United States
Unitedt8&a
Ireland
Italy
Japan
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Russia
Sweden
Sweden
Thailand
Turkey

France
France
Germany
Germany
Brazil
Brazil
China
China
Spain
Spain
United States
Italy
United Kingdom
Sweden
Switzerland

99.75%
100.00%
100.00%
99.91%
0.00%
100.00%
100.00%
99.83%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
99.95%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
99.66%
47.53%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
99.83%
99.83%
100.00%
100.00%
99.99%
100.00%
100.00%
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BUILDING DISTRIBUTION SECTOR

Distribution Sanitaire Chauffage
Lapeyre
Point.P

Saint-Gobain Building Distribution Deutschland GmbH

Saint-Gobain Distribuicao Brasil Ltda
Saint-Gobain Distribution Denmark
Saint-Gobain Distribucion Construccion, S.L
Norandex Building Material Distribution, Inc.
Optimera As

Saint-Gobain Distribution The Netherlands B.V
Saint-Gobain Dystrybucja Budowlana Sp Zoo
Saint-Gobain Building Distribution Ltd

Saint-Gobain Building Distribution CZ, Spol S.R.O.

Saint-Gobain Distribution Nordic Ab
Sanitas Troesch Ag

PACKAGING SECTOR

Saint-Gobain Emballage

Saint-Gobain Oberland Aktiengesellschaft
Saint-Gobain Vidros SA

Saint-Gobain Vicasa SA

Saint-Gobain Containers, Inc.
Saint-Gobain Vetri S.p.a

France
France
France
Germany
Brazil
Denmark
Spain
Unit&tates
Norway
Nelheds
Poland
United Kingdo
zech Republic
Sweden
Switzerland

France
Germany
Brazil
Spain
United States
Italy

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

839%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
93.9
99.99%
100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%
B%.6
100.00%
99.75%
100.00%
99.99%
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NOTE 35 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 14, 2013, Saint-Gobain entered intousixe negotiations with the Ardagh Group concerrtimeg
latter’s offer to acquire Verallia North Americahd binding and irrevocable offer is not conditiomabn financing
being arranged.

On January 17, 2013, after consulting the WorksnCibwhich expressed its support for the plan, @reup
accepted Ardagh’s offer to acquire Verallia Nortmé¥ica.
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